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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

    This document includes forward-looking statements. We have based these forward-looking statements on our current views and assumptions
about future events.

    These forward-looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions we have made, including, among other things:

� changes in international economic and political conditions, and in particular in oil and gas prices;

� our ability to reduce costs;

� our ability to finance our operations on acceptable terms;

� the timely development and acceptance of our new products and services;

� the effects of competition;

� political, legal and other developments in foreign countries;

� the timing and extent of changes in exchange rates for non-U.S. currencies and interest rates;

� the accuracy of our assessment of risks related to acquisitions, projects and contracts, and whether these risks materialize;

� our ability to integrate successfully the businesses or assets we acquire;

� our ability to sell our seismic data library;

� our ability to access the debt and equity markets during the periods covered by the forward-looking statements, which will depend on
general market conditions and on our credit ratings for our debt obligations; and

� our success at managing the risks of the foregoing.
    We undertake no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or
otherwise. In light of these risks, uncertainties and assumptions, the forward-looking events discussed in this document might not occur.
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BARBIER FRINAULT & AUTRES
41, rue Ybry

92576 Neuilly-sur-Seine Cedex

ERNST & YOUNG AUDIT
4, rue Auber
75009 Paris

Compagnie Générale de Géophysique
As of and for the six months period ended June 30, 2002

Statutory Auditors� Review Report on the Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

(Free translation of the French original)

In our capacity as statutory auditors of Compagnie Générale de Géophysique and in accordance with Article L.232-7 of French Company Law
(Code de Commerce), we have performed the following procedures:

� a review of the accompanying summary of operations and income statement as they appear in the consolidated interim financial statements
of Compagnie Générale de Géophysique (the Company) as of and for the six-month period ended June 30, 2002;

� an examination of the information provided in the Company�s interim report.
These interim consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Board of Directors. Our responsibility is to issue a report on these
financial statements based on our review.

We conducted our review in accordance with professional standards accepted in France. These standards require that we plan and perform the
review to obtain moderate assurance, lesser than that which would result from an audit, as to whether the consolidated interim financial
statements are free from material misstatement. The review excluded certain audit procedures and was limited to performing analytical
procedures and to obtaining information from Company management and other appropriate sources.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying interim consolidated financial
statements, prepared in accordance with French accounting principles, do not present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Group and its operations for the period then ended.

We have also examined, in accordance with French professional standards, the information contained in the interim report on the consolidated
interim financial statements that were the subject of our review.

We have nothing to report with respect to the fairness of such information and its consistency with the consolidated interim financial statements.

September 5, 2002

BARBIER FRINAULT & AUTRES ERNST & YOUNG AUDIT

Represented by
Pascal Macioce

Represented by
François Hilly
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PART I

Item 1: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
COMPAGNIE GÉNÉRALE DE GÉOPHYSIQUE, S.A.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

June 30,
2002 December 31,

(Unaudited) 2001

Notes U.S.$ � �

(in millions)
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 64.1 65.1 56.7
Trade accounts and notes receivable 219.1 222.3 274.1
Inventories and work-in-progress 76.6 77.7 93.9
Other current assets 70.7 71.7 54.2

Total current assets 430.5 436.8 478.9

Long term receivable and other investments 13.0 13.2 19.4
Investments in and advances to companies under the equity method 3 41.2 41.8 51.4
Property, plant and equipment, net 305.0 309.5 280.7
Goodwill and intangible assets, net 4 185.3 188.0 184.0

Total assets 975.0 989.3 1,014.4

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS� EQUITY
Bank overdrafts 13.4 13.6 6.2
Current portion of long-term debt 5 28.5 28.9 24.4
Trade accounts and notes payable 78.6 79.8 96.6
Accrued payroll costs 50.9 51.6 52.5
Income taxes payable 18.8 19.1 28.2
Advance billings to customers 12.1 12.3 12.6
Other current liabilities 36.5 37.0 40.5

Total current liabilities 238.8 242.3 261.0

Long-term debt 5 263.9 267.8 255.1
Other long-term liabilities 36.5 37.0 25.6

Total long-term liabilities 300.4 304.8 280.7

Minority interest 8.8 8.9 9.9
Common stock, 24,498,368 shares authorized; 11,680,718 shares with a �2
nominal value issued and outstanding as of June 30, 2002; 11,680,718 at
December 31, 2001 6 23.1 23.4 23.4
Additional paid-in capital 306.1 310.6 347.5
Retained earnings 105.6 107.2 54.6
Net income (loss) for the period 0.3 0.3 15.7
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Cumulative translation adjustment (8.1) (8.2) 21.6

Total shareholders� equity 427.0 433.3 462.8

Total liabilities and shareholders� equity 975.0 989.3 1,014.4

See notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The financial information expressed in U.S. dollars is presented solely for the convenience of the reader and is translated from Euros at the Noon
Buying Rate in New York City on June 28, 2002, which was U.S.$0.9856 per Euro.
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COMPAGNIE GÉNÉRALE DE GÉOPHYSIQUE, S.A.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(UNAUDITED)

Six months ended June 30, Three months ended June 30,

Notes 2002 2002 2001 2002 2001

U.S.$ � � � �
(in millions, except per share data)

Operating revenues 9 331.5 336.3 378.1 178.5 195.9
Cost of operations (255.9) (259.6) (309.7) (139.1) (155.9)

Gross profit 75.6 76.7 68.4 39.4 40.0

Research and development expenses � net (13.9) (14.1) (16.5) (7.2) (7.9)
Selling, general and administrative expenses (42.3) (42.9) (39.2) (20.1) (20.1)
Other revenues (expenses) � net 10 (2.7) (2.8) 1.6 (2.3) 0.7

Operating income (loss) 9 16.7 16.9 14.3 9.8 12.7

Interest and other financial income and
expense � net (14.1) (14.3) (11.7) (7.6) (5.8)
Exchange gains (losses) � net 4.6 4.7 (2.4) 6.2 (2.6)

Income (loss) from consolidated companies
before income taxes 7.2 7.3 0.2 8.4 4.3

Income taxes 11 (4.7) (4.8) (6.6) (1.9) (4.6)

Net income (loss) from consolidated
companies 2.5 2.5 (6.4) 6.5 (0.3)

Equity in income (losses) of investees 1.2 1.2 4.6 1.0 3.1
Goodwill amortization (3.3) (3.3) (3.3) (1.6) (1.8)

Net income (loss) before minority interest 0.4 0.4 (5.1) 5.9 1.0

Minority interest (0.1) (0.1) � � �

Net income (loss) 0.3 0.3 (5.1) 5.9 1.0

Weighted average number of shares
outstanding 11,680,718 11,511,118 11,680,718 11,678,886
Dilutive potential shares from stock-options �(a) 83,095 �(a) 95,372

Dilutive weighted average number of shares
outstanding 11,680,718 11,594,213 11,680,718 11,774,258

Net income (loss) per share
Basic 0.03 (0.44) 0.51 0.09
Diluted 0.03 (0.44) 0.51 0.08
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(a) Effects of stock option anti-dilutive
See notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The financial information expressed in U.S. dollars is presented solely for the convenience of the reader and is translated from Euros at the Noon
Buying Rate in New York City on June 28, 2002, which was U.S.$0.9856 per Euro.
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COMPAGNIE GÉNÉRALE DE GÉOPHYSIQUE, S.A.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(UNAUDITED)

Six months ended June 30,

2002 2002 2001

U.S.$ � �
(in millions)

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income (loss) 0.3 0.3 (5.1)
Depreciation and amortization 34.0 34.5 38.2
Multi-client surveys amortization 38.6 39.2 29.1
Net loss (gain) on sale of assets 0.8 0.8 (0.2)

The following actions will be subject to stockholder approval unless such actions are taken in connection with a change in our capitalization,
such as a stock split or a recapitalization, merger or certain other corporate transactions: (i) the reduction in the price used to determine the
amount payable to a participant upon exercise of any stock appreciation right granted under the Stock Plan (such price referred to herein as the
�base appreciation amount�); or (ii) the cancellation of a stock appreciation right at a time when its base appreciation amount exceeds the fair
market value of the underlying shares of common stock subject to the stock appreciation right in exchange for another option, stock appreciation
right, other award or for a cash payment. Notwithstanding the foregoing, canceling a stock appreciation right in exchange for another option,
stock appreciation right or other Award with an exercise price, purchase price or base appreciation amount that is equal to or greater than the
base appreciation amount of the original stock appreciation right will not be subject to stockholder approval.
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Cash Awards

Each cash award granted under the Stock Plan will be subject to Qualifying Performance Criteria and will be reflected in an agreement
containing provisions regarding (1) the target and maximum amount payable to the participant as a cash award, (2) the Qualifying Performance
Criteria and level of achievement versus the criteria that will determine the amount of such payment, (3) the period as to which performance
shall be measured for establishing the amount of any payment, (4) the timing of any payment earned by virtue of performance, (5) restrictions on
the alienation or transfer of the cash award prior to actual payment, (6) forfeiture provisions, and (7) such further terms and conditions, in each
case not inconsistent with the Stock Plan, as may be determined from time to time by the Administrator. The maximum amount payable as a
cash award that is settled for cash may be a multiple of the target amount payable. The maximum amount payable pursuant to a cash award
granted under the Stock Plan for any fiscal year intended to satisfy the requirements to �performance based compensation� under Section 162(m)
may not exceed $1,000,000. Nothing in the Stock Plan prevents the Company from granting cash awards outside of the Stock Plan to any
individual.

Adjustments on Changes in Capitalization, Merger or Change of Control

In the event of any stock dividend, stock split, reverse stock split, recapitalization, combination, reclassification or similar change to the capital
structure of the Company without receipt of consideration by the Company, or in the event of distribution to the stockholders of cash or stock
other than an ordinary cash dividend, appropriate adjustments will be made to (i) the number of shares subject to the Stock Plan, (ii) the number
of shares that may be awarded to any individual under the Stock Plan during a single fiscal year, and (iii) the price per share and number of
shares under each outstanding Award. Any such adjustments shall be made by the Board, and the decision of the Board shall be final, binding
and conclusive.

In the event of a proposed sale of all or substantially all of the Company�s assets or a merger of the Company with or into another corporation,
each outstanding Award shall be assumed or an equivalent Award shall be substituted by the successor corporation or a parent or subsidiary of
such successor corporation, unless the successor corporation does not agree to assume such Award, in which case such Award shall accelerate
immediately prior to the consummation of the transaction.

In the event of a proposed dissolution or liquidation of the Company, each Award will terminate immediately prior to the consummation of the
dissolution or liquidation, unless otherwise determined by the Administrator.

Amendment and Termination of the Stock Plan

The Board may amend, alter, suspend or discontinue the Stock Plan. However, the Company shall obtain stockholder approval for any
amendment to the Stock Plan to the extent necessary and desirable to comply with applicable laws and listing requirements. Generally, no such
action by the Board or stockholders may alter or impair any outstanding Award under the Stock Plan without the written consent of the holder.
In addition, without the written consent of the stockholders, no amendment shall be made that would result in a repricing of options or stock
appreciation rights by (i) reducing the exercise price or base appreciation amount of outstanding options or stock appreciation rights or
(ii) cancelling an outstanding option or stock appreciation right held by a participant and re-granting to the participant a new option with a lower
exercise price, a stock appreciation right with a lower base appreciation amount, or another Award or for a cash payment, in either case other
than in connection with a change in the Company�s capitalization, merger or certain other corporate transactions. The Stock Plan will terminate in
June 2020.

U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of Options under the Stock Plan

THE FOLLOWING IS A GENERAL SUMMARY OF THE TYPICAL U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES OF THE
ISSUANCE AND EXERCISE OF OPTIONS OR OTHER AWARDS UNDER THE STOCK PLAN. IT DOES NOT DESCRIBE STATE OR
OTHER TAX CONSEQUENCES OF THE ISSUANCE AND EXERCISE OF OPTIONS OR OF OTHER AWARDS.

18
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Nonstatutory Stock Options.    The grant of a nonstatutory stock option under the Stock Plan will not result in any federal income tax
consequences to the participant or to the Company. Upon exercise of a nonstatutory stock option, the participant is subject to income taxes at the
rate applicable to ordinary compensation income on the difference between the option exercise price and the fair market value of the shares at
the time of exercise. This income is subject to withholding for federal income and employment tax purposes. The Company is entitled to an
income tax deduction in the amount of the income recognized by the participant, subject to possible limitations imposed by Section 162(m) of
the Code and so long as the Company withholds the appropriate taxes with respect to such income (if required) and the participant�s total
compensation is deemed reasonable in amount. Any gain or loss on the participant�s subsequent disposition of the shares will receive long or
short-term capital gain or loss treatment, depending on whether the shares are held for more than one year following exercise. The Company
does not receive a tax deduction for any such gain.

A nonstatutory stock option can be considered non-qualified deferred compensation and subject to Section 409A of the Code. If such a
nonstatutory stock option does not meet the requirements of Code Section 409A, the option can result in the acceleration of income recognition,
an additional 20% tax obligation, plus penalties and interest.

Incentive Stock Options.    The grant of an incentive stock option under the Stock Plan will not result in any federal income tax consequences to
the participant or to the Company. A participant recognizes no federal taxable income upon exercising an incentive stock option (subject to the
alternative minimum tax rules discussed below), and the Company receives no deduction at the time of exercise. In the event of a disposition of
stock acquired upon exercise of an incentive stock option, the tax consequences depend upon how long the participant has held the shares. If the
participant does not dispose of the shares within two years after the incentive stock option was granted, nor within one year after the incentive
stock option was exercised, the participant will recognize a long-term capital gain (or loss) equal to the difference between the sale price of the
shares and the exercise price. The Company is not entitled to any deduction under these circumstances.

If the participant fails to satisfy either of the foregoing holding periods (referred to as a �disqualifying disposition�), he or she must recognize
ordinary income in the year of the disposition. The amount of ordinary income generally is the lesser of (i) the difference between the amount
realized on the disposition and the exercise price or (ii) the difference between the fair market value of the stock at the time of exercise and the
exercise price. Any gain in excess of the amount taxed as ordinary income will be treated as a long or short-term capital gain, depending on
whether the stock was held for more than one year. The Company, in the year of the disqualifying disposition, is entitled to a deduction equal to
the amount of ordinary income recognized by the participant, subject to possible limitations imposed by Section 162(m) of the Code and so long
as the participant�s total compensation is deemed reasonable in amount.

The �spread� under an incentive stock option�i.e., the difference between the fair market value of the shares at exercise and the exercise price�is
classified as an item of adjustment in the year of exercise for purposes of the alternative minimum tax. If a participant�s alternative minimum tax
liability exceeds such participant�s regular income tax liability, the participant will owe the larger amount of taxes. In order to avoid the
application of alternative minimum tax with respect to incentive stock options, the participant must sell the shares within the calendar year in
which the incentive stock options are exercised. However, such a sale of shares within the year of exercise will constitute a disqualifying
disposition, as described above.

Stock Appreciation Rights.    Recipients of stock appreciation rights (�SARs�) generally should not recognize income until the SAR is exercised
(assuming there is no ceiling on the value of the right). Upon exercise, the recipient will normally recognize taxable ordinary income for federal
income tax purposes equal to the amount of cash and fair market value of the shares, if any, received upon such exercise. Recipients who are
employees will be subject to withholding for federal income and employment tax purposes with respect to income recognized upon exercise of a
SAR. Recipients will recognize gain upon the disposition of any shares received on exercise of a SAR equal to the excess of (i) the amount
realized on such disposition over (ii) the
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ordinary income recognized with respect to such shares under the principles set forth above. That gain will be taxable as long or short-term
capital gain depending on whether the shares were held for more than one year. The Company will be entitled to a tax deduction to the extent
and in the year that ordinary income is recognized by the recipient, subject to possible limitations imposed by Section 162(m) of the Code and so
long as we withhold the appropriate taxes with respect to such income (if required) and the recipient�s total compensation is deemed reasonable
in amount.

A SAR can be considered non-qualified deferred compensation and subject to Section 409A of the Code. If such a SAR does not meet the
requirements of Code Section 409A, the SAR can result in the acceleration of income recognition, an additional 20% tax obligation, plus
penalties and interest.

Restricted Stock and Stock Purchase Rights.    The grant of restricted stock and stock purchase rights will subject the recipient to ordinary
compensation income on the difference between the amount paid for the shares subject to the Award and the fair market value of the shares on
the date that the restrictions lapse. This income is subject to withholding for federal income and employment tax purposes. The Company is
entitled to an income tax deduction in the amount of the ordinary income recognized by the recipient, subject to possible limitations imposed by
Section 162(m) of the Code and so long as the Company withholds the appropriate taxes with respect to such income (if required) and the
participant�s total compensation is deemed reasonable in amount. Any gain or loss on the recipient�s subsequent disposition of the shares will
receive long or short-term capital gain or loss treatment depending on how long the stock has been held since the restrictions lapsed. The
Company does not receive a tax deduction for any such gain.

Recipients of restricted stock and stock purchase rights may make an election under Section 83(b) of the Code (�Section 83(b) Election�) to
recognize as ordinary compensation income in the year that such restricted stock is granted or stock purchase right is exercised, the amount
equal to the spread between the amount paid for such stock and the fair market value on the date of the issuance of the stock. If such an election
is made, the recipient recognizes no further amounts of compensation income upon the lapse of any restrictions and any gain or loss on
subsequent disposition will be long or short-term capital gain to the recipient. The Section 83(b) Election must be made within thirty days from
the time the restricted stock is granted or the time when restricted stock is purchased through a stock purchase right.

Restricted Stock Units.    Recipients of restricted stock units generally should not recognize income until such units are converted into cash or
shares. Upon conversion, the recipient will normally recognize taxable ordinary income for federal income tax purposes equal to the amount of
cash and fair market value of the shares, if any, received upon such conversion. Recipients who are employees will be subject to withholding for
federal income and employment tax purposes with respect to income recognized upon conversion of the restricted stock units. Participants will
recognize gain upon the disposition of any shares received upon conversion of the restricted stock units equal to the excess of (i) the amount
realized on such disposition over (ii) the ordinary income recognized with respect to such shares under the principles set forth above. That gain
will be taxable as long or short-term capital gain depending on whether the shares were held for more than one year. The Company will be
entitled to a tax deduction to the extent and in the year that ordinary income is recognized by the recipient, subject to possible limitations
imposed by Section 162(m) of the Code and so long as the Company withholds the appropriate taxes with respect to such income (if required)
and the recipient�s total compensation is deemed reasonable in amount.

Restricted stock units also can be considered non-qualified deferred compensation and subject to Section 409A of the Code. If such an Award of
restricted stock units does not meet the requirements of Code Section 409A, the restricted stock units will result in an additional 20% tax
obligation, plus penalties and interest to such recipient.

Other Stock Awards.    Other stock awards will generally be taxed in the same manner as nonstatutory stock options, and the participant will
recognize ordinary income on the dates when the shares subject to the stock
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awards are issued and no longer subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture or when the shares becomes transferable, if earlier. The participant�s
ordinary income is measured as the difference between the amount paid for the shares, if any, and the fair market value of the shares on the date
the shares are no longer subject to forfeiture. This income is subject to withholding for federal income and employment tax purposes. The
Company is entitled to an income tax deduction in the amount of the ordinary income recognized by the recipient, subject to possible limitations
imposed by Section 162(m) of the Code and so long as the Company withholds the appropriate taxes with respect to such income (if required)
and the participant�s total compensation is deemed reasonable in amount. Any gain or loss on the recipient�s subsequent disposition of the shares
will receive long or short-term capital gain or loss treatment depending on how long the stock has been held since the restrictions lapsed. The
Company does not receive a tax deduction for any such gain.

Cash Awards.    Upon receipt of cash, the recipient will have taxable ordinary income, in the year of receipt, equal to the cash received. Any
cash received will be subject to tax withholding by the Company. Unless limited by Section 162(m) of the Code, the Company will be entitled to
a tax deduction in the amount and at the time the recipient recognizes compensation income.

Recommendation of the Board:

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS A VOTE FOR THE AMENDMENT TO

THE 2000 STOCK PLAN TO INCREASE THE NUMBER OF SHARES OF OUR COMPANY�S COMMON STOCK AVAILABLE
FOR ISSUANCE BY 4,000,000 SHARES AND TO RE-APPROVE ITS MATERIAL TERMS.
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PROPOSAL NO. 3

ADVISORY VOTE ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act added Section 14A to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requiring that we
provide our stockholders with the opportunity to vote to approve, on a nonbinding, advisory basis, the compensation of our named executive
officers as disclosed in this proxy statement in accordance with the compensation disclosure rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

As described in greater detail under the heading �Compensation Discussion and Analysis,� we seek to closely align the interests of our named
executive officers with the interests of our stockholders. Our compensation programs are designed to reward our named executive officers for
the achievement of short-term and long-term strategic and operational goals and the achievement of increased total stockholder return, while at
the same time avoiding the encouragement of unnecessary or excessive risk-taking.

This vote is advisory, which means that the vote on executive compensation is not binding on the Company, our Board of Directors or the
Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors. The vote on this resolution is not intended to address any specific element of compensation,
but rather relates to the overall compensation of our named executive officers, as described in this proxy statement in accordance with the
compensation disclosure rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission. To the extent there is a significant vote against our named executive
officer compensation as disclosed in this proxy statement, the Compensation Committee will evaluate whether any actions are necessary to
address our stockholders� concerns.

The affirmative vote of a majority of the shares present or represented and entitled to vote either in person or by proxy is required to approve this
Proposal 3. Accordingly, we ask our stockholders to vote on the following resolution at the Annual Meeting:

�RESOLVED, that the Company�s stockholders approve, on an advisory basis, the compensation of the named executive officers, as disclosed in
the Company�s Proxy Statement for the 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders pursuant to the compensation disclosure rules of the Securities and
Exchange Commission, including the Compensation Discussion and Analysis, the Summary Compensation Table and the other related tables
and disclosure.�

Recommendation of the Board:

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS A VOTE FOR

THE APPROVAL OF THE COMPENSATION OF OUR NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, AS

DISCLOSED IN THIS PROXY STATEMENT.
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PROPOSAL NO. 4

RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED

PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Audit Committee has recommended, and the Board has approved, the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as our independent registered
public accounting firm for fiscal year 2014. Ernst & Young LLP has served as our independent registered public accounting firm since 1998. In
the event that ratification of this selection of auditors is not approved by the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares present in person or
represented by proxy at the Annual Meeting, the Board will review its future selection of auditors.

A representative of Ernst & Young LLP is expected to be present at the Annual Meeting. This representative will have an opportunity to make a
statement and will be available to respond to appropriate questions.

Recommendation of the Board:

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS A VOTE FOR

RATIFICATION OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP AS THE COMPANY�S

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014
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COMMON STOCK OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table presents information concerning the beneficial ownership of the shares of our common stock as of April 21, 2014 by:

� each person whom we know to beneficially own more than 5% of our common stock;

� each of our directors;

� each of our Named Executive Officers; and

� all of our directors and executive officers as a group.
The number and percentage of shares beneficially owned are based on 110,522,882 shares of common stock outstanding as of April 21, 2014.
Beneficial ownership is determined under the rules and regulations of the SEC. Shares of common stock subject to options, warrants and
conversion privileges that are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of April 21, 2014 are deemed to be outstanding and
beneficially owned by the person holding the options, warrants or convertible securities for the purpose of computing the number of shares
beneficially owned and the percentage ownership of that person, but are not deemed to be outstanding for the purpose of computing the
percentage ownership of any other person. Except as indicated in the footnotes to this table, and subject to applicable community property laws,
these persons have sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares of our common stock shown as beneficially owned by them.

Name and Address

Amount
and Nature

of
Beneficial
Ownership

Percent
of Common

Stock
Holders of 5% or more of our common stock

First Eagle Investment Management, LLC (1) 10,707,142 9.7
1345 Avenue of Americas

New York, NY 10105

Johnson & Johnson (2) 6,600,000 6.0
Alza Corporation
One Johnson & Johnson Plaza

New Brunswick, NJ 08933
Directors and Named Executive Officers
James E. Brown, D.V.M. (3) 4,432,714 3.9
Felix Theeuwes, D.Sc. (4) 4,581,455 4.1
Matthew J. Hogan, M.B.A. (4) 1,194,516 1.1
Su Il Yum, Ph.D. (6) 1,346,265 1.2
Simon X. Benito (7) 223,987 *
Terrence F. Blaschke, M.D. (8) 186,987 *
David R. Hoffmann (9) 287,468 *
Armand P. Neukermans, Ph.D. (10) 282,237 *
Jon S. Saxe (11) 233,797 *
Jay Shepard (12) � *
All executive officers and directors as a group (11 persons) (13) 13,411,158 11.3

* Less than 1% of the outstanding shares of common stock. Except as otherwise noted, the address of each person listed in the table is c/o
DURECT Corporation, 10260 Bubb Road, Cupertino, California 95014.
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(1) Based upon a Schedule 13G filed by First Eagle Investment Management, LLC on February 11, 2014. First Eagle Investment
Management, LLC has sole voting and dispositive power over 10,707,142 of these shares.
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(2) Based upon a Schedule 13G/A filed by Johnson & Johnson (�J&J�) and Alza Corporation (�Alza�) on April 2, 2002. These securities are
owned directly by Alza, a wholly-owned subsidiary of J&J, and the two companies share voting and dispositive power over all 6,600,000
shares.

(3) Includes 1,764,530 shares held by James E. Brown, 560,000 shares held by the James & Karen Brown 1998 Trust U/A and 50,000 shares
held by the James & Karen Brown 2006 Trust U/A. Also includes 2,058,184 shares issuable upon exercise of options exercisable within
60 days of April 21, 2014.

(4) Includes 2,351,999 shares held by the Felix and Marie-Therese Theeuwes Family Trust. Also includes 2,229,456 shares issuable upon
exercise of options exercisable within 60 days of April 21, 2014.

(5) Includes 2,000 shares held by Matthew J. Hogan and 10,000 shares held by the Matthew and Maureen Hogan Trust U/A dated March 12,
1999. Also includes 1,182,516 shares issuable upon exercise of options exercisable within 60 days of April 21, 2014.

(6) Includes 73,454 shares held by Su Il Yum and 41,816 shares held by the Su Il Yum and Young Yum Living Trust dated May 2, 2006.
Also includes 1,230,995 shares issuable upon exercise of options exercisable within 60 days of April 21, 2014.

(7) Includes 20,000 shares held by Simon X. Benito. Also includes 203,987 shares issuable upon exercise of options exercisable within 60
days of April 21, 2014.

(8) Includes 3,000 shares held by the Terrence and Jeannette Blaschke Trust U/A dated November 11, 1993. Also includes 183,987 shares
issuable upon exercise of options exercisable within 60 days of April 21, 2014.

(9) Includes 25,000 shares held by David R. Hoffmann and 48,000 shares held by David R. Hoffmann and Judy A. Hoffmann in trust for the
benefit of Alec D. Hoffmann and Todd L. Hoffmann. Also includes 214,468 shares issuable upon exercise of options exercisable within
60 days of April 21, 2014.

(10) Includes 95,000 shares held by Neukermans Family Trust and 1,250 shares held by Armand P. Neukermans. Also includes 185,987
shares issuable upon exercise of options exercisable within 60 days of April 21, 2014.

(11) Includes 27,810 shares held by Jon S. Saxe and 20,000 shares held by the Jon S. Saxe and Myrna G. Marshall 1997 Trust. Also includes
185,987 shares issuable upon exercise of options exercisable within 60 days of April 21, 2014.

(12) Jay Shepard joined the Board of Directors of the Company in September 2013.
(13) Includes an aggregate of 8,306,195 shares issuable pursuant to the exercise of outstanding stock options exercisable within 60 days of

April 21, 2014, including 630,628 shares issuable to Judy Joice, who is not a Named Executive Officer but is an executive officer of the
Company as of April 21, 2014.
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

The Compensation Committee (for purposes of this analysis, the �Committee�) of the Board has responsibility for establishing, implementing and
continually monitoring adherence with our compensation practices. The Committee makes all compensation decisions for our Chief Executive
Officer (our �CEO�) and Chief Financial Officer (our �CFO�), as well as the other individuals included in the Summary Compensation Table below
(our �Named Executive Officers�) and all of our Vice Presidents. In this proxy, we refer to those persons as our �Officers.�

Philosophy and Elements

All of our compensation programs are designed to attract and retain key employees, motivating them to achieve and rewarding them
appropriately for their performance. Different programs are geared to short and longer-term performance with the goal of increasing stockholder
value over the long term. Executive compensation programs impact all employees by setting general levels of compensation and helping to
create an environment of goals, rewards and expectations. Because we believe the performance of every employee is important to our success,
we consider the effect of executive compensation and incentive programs on all of our employees.

We believe that the compensation of our Officers should reflect the extent of their success as a management team and in addition, their
individual performance, in attaining key operating objectives, such as advancing our product pipeline, entering into strategic collaborative
agreements and maintaining our financial strength, and ultimately, increasing stockholder value. We believe that the performance of our Officers
in managing the Company, considered in light of general economic and specific Company, industry and competitive conditions, should be the
basis for determining their overall compensation. We also believe that their compensation should not be based on the short-term performance of
our stock, whether favorable or unfavorable, but rather that the price of our stock will, in the long-term, reflect our operating performance, and
ultimately, the management of the Company by our Officers. We seek to have the long-term performance of our stock reflected in executive
compensation through our stock option and other equity incentive programs.

Elements of compensation for our executives include: salary, bonus, stock incentive awards and perquisites. We choose to pay each element of
compensation in order to attract and retain the necessary executive talent, reward performance and provide incentive for their balanced focus on
long-term strategic goals as well as short-term performance. The amount of each element of compensation is determined by or under the
direction of the Committee, which uses the following factors to determine the amount of salary and other benefits to pay each executive:

� performance against corporate and individual objectives for the previous year;

� value of their unique skills and capabilities to support our long-term performance;

� performance of their general management responsibilities;

� contribution as a member of our executive management team;

� difficulty of achieving desired results in the coming year and years to follow; and

� compensation paid by companies deemed by the Committee to be comparable to us.
These elements fit into our overall compensation objectives by helping to secure the future potential of our products and operations, continuing
to meet our business objectives, providing proper compliance and regulatory guidance, and helping to create an effective and cohesive team. Our
policy for allocating between long-term and currently paid compensation is to ensure adequate base compensation to attract and retain personnel,
while providing incentives to maximize long-term value for us and our stockholders. Likewise, we provide cash
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compensation in the form of base salary to meet competitive salary norms and reward performance on an annual basis and in the form of bonus
compensation to reward superior performance against specific annual goals. We provide non-cash compensation (i.e., stock options) to reward
superior performance against specific objectives and long-term strategic goals. Our compensation package for our Named Executive Officers for
fiscal year 2013 ranged from 41% to 63% in cash compensation and 37% to 59% in non-cash compensation, including benefits and
equity-related awards. We believe that this structure is competitive within the marketplace and appropriate to fulfill our stated policies. There is
no pre-established policy or target for the allocation between either cash and non-cash or short-term and long-term incentive compensation.
Rather, the Committee reviews information from relevant peer companies, and such other information as it considers appropriate, to determine
the appropriate level and mix of incentive compensation.

Setting Officer Compensation

Process

At one or more meetings at the end of each fiscal year (usually in December) or early in the following fiscal year (usually in January or
February), the Committee reviews our performance during the fiscal year against established corporate objectives, individual Officer
performance and history of all the elements of each Officer�s total compensation in comparison with the compensation of executive officers in an
appropriate peer group as described below. After due consideration of the foregoing, the Committee:

� sets the base salaries for our Officers for the following fiscal year;

� approves individual Officer bonus payments for performance for the prior fiscal year;

� approves stock options that will be granted to each Officer for performance for the prior fiscal year;

� adopts the management incentive plan (including objectives and weighting) for the following fiscal year; and

� decides upon general compensation guidelines and overall salary, bonus and stock option budgets for all employees.
The specific basis for the determination of base salaries, bonuses and stock option grants to Officers is detailed below.

Role of Executive Officers

The CEO and the Chairman and Chief Scientific Officer (the �CSO�) annually review the performance of each Officer (other than the CEO and
the CSO, whose performance is reviewed by the Committee) with the assistance and input from our head of Human Resources. The conclusions
reached and recommendations made based on these reviews, including with respect to salary adjustments and annual award amounts, are
presented to the Committee. Officers, other than the CEO and the CSO, are not present at the time of these deliberations. The Committee can
exercise its discretion in modifying any recommended adjustments or awards to executives and ultimately makes the final decision with respect
to the compensation of all our Officers. The CEO and the CSO are not present during the Committee�s deliberations and discussion on their
individual compensation.

Benchmarking

To assist the Committee in benchmarking executive compensation, the Committee in 2013 retained Setren Smallberg & Associates, Inc., an
independent compensation consulting firm, and previously, from 2008 to 2012, retained J. Richard & Co., an independent compensation
consulting firm, to collect and synthesize data from several sources as detailed below.

To benchmark our Officer cash bonuses and equity awards for performance in fiscal year 2013 and base salaries for fiscal year 2014, the
Committee reviewed compensation information as reported in the definitive
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proxies for fiscal year 2012 from the following public life sciences companies: Alexza Pharmaceuticals, Amicus Therapeutics, Anacor
Pharmaceuticals, Anika Therapeutics, Corcept Therapeutics Inc., Depomed, Dyax, Geron, Insmed, Pain Therapeutics, Pozen, Savient, Sucampo,
Sunesis, Trius Therapeutics and Zogenix (the �Peer Companies�). The Committee selected the Peer Companies as a relevant comparison group for
us based on various criteria including similarity of business, employee headcount, market capitalization and revenue, and reviewed the proposed
Peer Companies with Setren Smallberg & Associates, Inc. for appropriateness as a comparison group. Where such source did not provide
sufficient information with respect to the bonus and equity compensation of certain officer positions, the Committee used compensation
information from The Radford Global Life Sciences Survey (2013) (the �2013 Radford Survey�) as a supplement. The Committee took into
consideration the summarized compensation data from the Peer Companies along with the data from the 2013 Radford Survey when setting base
salaries applicable for fiscal year 2014 and the cash bonuses and stock options awards to our Officers for performance in fiscal 2013.

Base Salary

It is the goal of the Committee to establish salary compensation for our Officers that is competitive with comparable peer companies. In setting
Officer base salaries for fiscal year 2014 (which were set in January 2014), the Committee reviewed the salary compensation of officers with
comparable qualifications, experience and responsibilities as reported in the 2013 Radford Survey and definitive proxies from the Peer
Companies. It is not our policy to pay our CEO or other Officers at the highest level relative to their respective counterparts at the Peer
Companies. The Committee generally targets compensation for our Officers at the 50th percentile of compensation paid to similarly situated
executives at the Peer Companies. Variations to this objective may occur as dictated by the experience and performance level of the individual
and market factors. We believe that this gives us the opportunity to attract and retain talented managerial employees both at the senior executive
level and below, yet conserves our financial resources, to the benefit of our stockholders.

For fiscal year 2014, Officers received a 3% merit increase in base salary effective April 1, 2014. Further, to preserve cash and continue aligning
the interests of the Company�s officers with the interests of the Company�s stockholders, four Officers volunteered to receive a reduction in the
portion of their salary paid in cash ranging from approximately 4% to 33%. Consequently, effective April 1, 2014, a portion of what would have
been their salary will be paid in cash and a portion of what would have been their salary will be paid in options. The total shares subject to these
options were determined by using a standard Black-Scholes option-pricing model, and the vesting occurs on a quarterly basis over a year,
subject to continued service. The total reduction in annualized cash base salary associated with these four officers was $203,750, and the total
number of associated options granted was 196,633.

For fiscal year 2013, Officers received a 3% merit increase in base salary effective April 1, 2013, with the exception of our CEO and CSO who
received no increase in base salary. Further, to preserve cash and continue aligning the interests of the Company�s officers with the interests of
the Company�s stockholders, six Officers volunteered to receive a reduction in the portion of their salary paid in cash ranging from approximately
5% to 33%. Consequently, effective February 1, 2013, a portion of what would have been their salary was paid in cash and a portion of what
would have been their salary was paid in options. The total shares subject to these options were determined by using a standard Black-Scholes
option-pricing model, and the vesting occurs on a quarterly basis over a year, subject to continued service. The total reduction in annualized cash
base salary associated with these six officers was $248,830, and the total number of associated options granted was 314,976.

Bonus (Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation)

The cash bonus element of our executive compensation is designed to reward our Officers for the achievement of shorter-term corporate goals,
measurable on an annual basis, as well as, with certain exceptions noted below for the CEO and CSO, individual Officer performance. Our
general process for determining the bonus element of our Officer compensation for fiscal years 2013 and 2014 performance is set forth below.
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In setting the target bonus for which each Officer would be eligible for fiscal 2013 and 2014 performance, the Committee reviewed the data
from the then-current peer companies (and the most recent available Radford Survey where applicable) with respect to the bonuses of officers
with comparable qualifications, experience and responsibilities at companies in their recommended peer groups. Based on the foregoing, for
performance in fiscal year 2013 and 2014, the Committee set the target bonus for the CEO and CSO at 60% of such individual�s base salary, and
for all other Officers at 30%�40% of such individual�s base salary. The two factors used by the Committee to determine the percentage of the
target amount to be awarded to any individual Officer other than the CEO and CSO are the individual performance of such Officer during the
relevant fiscal year and the Company�s performance as a whole against pre-set corporate objectives for such fiscal year (the �Corporate
Objectives�). The Committee retains the discretion to adjust actual bonus payments based on other factors, as discussed below.

The Corporate Objectives for each fiscal year are typically established by the Committee in consultation with our Officers at the end of the
previous fiscal year or no later than the first quarter of such fiscal year. The Corporate Objectives comprise product development, financial,
business development and operational goals with varying degrees of difficulty and have associated target dates for accomplishment. Each
objective is weighted based on the importance of the accomplishment of the objective to the Company�s overall value. At the end of each fiscal
year, the Committee makes a determination of the overall percentage of the Corporate Objectives accomplished by the Company as a whole
during the fiscal year. The Committee exercises its reasonable discretion in determining the percentage of Corporate Objectives accomplished by
the Company, including, for example, taking into account the achievement of any listed objective above expectations or the accomplishments of
the Company that were not listed in the Corporate Objectives.

For fiscal year 2013, the Corporate Objectives against which Officer performance was evaluated consisted of, among others, the following goals.

� Financial

� The primary financial goal was to minimize overall corporate cash utilization such that net cash consumption did not exceed
$16 million.

� Business Development

� The primary business development goal was to achieve new revenue of $5 million from new projects or newly activated
existing partnered projects.

� In addition, we had goals that included generating at least $1 million in revenue from feasibility agreements with third parties,
advancing one feasibility project into a development agreement, and completing a development/commercialization agreement
for at least one current development-stage program.

� Product Development

� POSIDURTM: The primary goals related to achieving acceptance of the New Drug Application (NDA) submission by the
FDA, providing responses to FDA queries promptly such that the PDUFA date was not impacted, and implementing steps
toward commercialization that also would assist our business development efforts.

� ORADUR® Programs: The primary goals related to continued support of our licensee Pfizer�s efforts to prepare for
resubmission of the NDA for REMOXY®, and achieving a formulation in our ORADUR-ADHD program that meets our
target product profile in a Phase I study.

� Relday�: The primary goals related to assisting our licensee Zogenix in completing a successful Phase I study.

Edgar Filing: GENERAL GEOPHYSICS CO - Form 6-K

Table of Contents 26



After evaluating the Company�s performance against the Corporate Objectives established for 2013, the Committee determined that the overall
percentage of Corporate Objectives accomplished by the Company as a whole for fiscal year 2013 was 80%.
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The Committee believes that the accomplishments of the Company as a whole are an important measure of the performance of all of our
Officers, including the effectiveness of their leadership and teamwork. In particular, the percentage of the total eligible amount that is normally
awarded to the CEO and CSO as a bonus is based entirely on the Company�s overall performance and accomplishment of the Corporate
Objectives because the Committee believes that the paramount duty of these individuals is leadership. Thus, the bonus awarded to the CEO and
the CSO for fiscal year 2013 was computed by multiplying 80% (the percentage determined by the Committee based on Corporate Objectives
accomplished and the Company�s overall performance) by 60% of the CEO or CSO�s base notional salary in fiscal year 2013 (the target bonus
amount that such individual is eligible to receive as set by the Committee). For fiscal year 2013, the Committee applied a weighting of Corporate
Objectives (from 80% to 90% or 95%, depending on the Officer) and applied a weighting of individual performance (from 20% to 10% or 5%,
depending on the Officer) for Officers other than the CEO and CSO. Bonuses for fiscal year 2013 for the CEO and CSO continued to be based
solely on Corporate Objectives.

The individual performance of each Officer, except for the CEO and CSO, is assessed as part of an annual written performance appraisal
performed typically at the end of each fiscal year. At the end of each fiscal year or early in the following fiscal year, each Officer, together with
his or her supervisor (e.g., the CEO or CSO), agrees upon a written set of objectives for the following fiscal year pertinent to the Officer
individually (which includes goals for the functional area or business managed by such Officer). The supervisor also assesses the
accomplishments of the Officer in such fiscal year against the applicable pre-established objectives for that Officer in such year, and arrives at a
percentage of goals accomplished. For performance in fiscal year 2013, the bonus of each Officer other than the CEO or CSO was determined as
follows:

Bonus Amount = (A% * B% + C% * D%) * E% * Base Salary

A = the percentage (5%, 10% or 20%) of individual performance applicable to the Officer

B = the percentage of personal objectives accomplished by the Officer as determined by the Officer�s supervisor

C = the percentage (80%, 90% or 95%) of weighting of Corporate Objectives

D = the percentage of Corporate Objectives accomplished and overall performance by the Company as determined by the Committee

E = the percentage (30%, 35% or 40%) of the base salary set as the maximum bonus target applicable to the Officer
Notwithstanding the general practice with respect to determination of Officer bonuses set forth above, the Committee retains complete discretion
to adjust the result obtained using the general approach for individual variations in performance or business considerations.

With respect to bonuses for fiscal year 2013 performance, in order to preserve cash and to more closely align the interests of the Company�s
shareholders, management recommended and the Committee agreed that 25% of the bonus award would be paid in cash and 75% of the bonus
award would be paid in options to employees relative to 2013 performance. The total shares subject to each bonus option were determined by
using a standard Black-Scholes option-pricing model. Options to purchase 569,219 shares subject to the bonus options that fully vested upon
grant were granted to our Officers in January 2014. In February 2014, the four Named Executive Officers voluntarily declined to receive cash
bonuses totaling $157,897 awarded by the Committee. In so doing, this represents the third consecutive year in which the four Named Executive
Officers have received no cash bonus for performance in the preceding year, with fully vested options to purchase 759,544 shares having been
granted to our Officers in February 2013 in respect of bonuses awarded by the Committee relative to fiscal year 2012 performance.
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Equity Incentive Program

We intend that our equity incentive program is the primary vehicle for offering long-term incentives and rewarding our Officers and key
employees. We also regard our equity incentive program as a key retention tool. This is a very important factor in our determination of the type
of award to grant and the number of underlying shares that are granted in connection with that award. Because of the direct relationship between
the value of an option and the market price of our common stock, we have always believed that granting stock options is the best method of
motivating our Officers to manage the Company in a manner that is consistent with our interests and those of our stockholders. It is our typical
practice to grant stock options to our Officers and all employees annually in connection with our annual employee performance appraisal.

At the same meeting(s) during which the Committee determines our Officer base salaries for the following fiscal year and bonuses for
performance in the previous fiscal year, the Committee also determines the ranges of stock options for which our Officers are eligible by rank.
The Committee sets these ranges after consideration of (a) the value of equity incentive awards of officers with comparable qualifications,
experience and responsibilities at the then-current peer companies, (b) the dilution that would be created by the stock options awards for that
fiscal year (the �Burn Rate�) and (c) the overall value of equity held by our employees as a retention incentive. The Committee�s general
philosophy is that the value of our equity incentive awards to our Officers should be competitive with the then-current peer companies subject to
the Company maintaining a Burn Rate for its equity incentive programs that is not overly dilutive to our stockholders and comparable to other
companies in the then-current peer group.

For our annual stock option grant in connection with the Company�s fiscal year 2012 performance appraisal, the date of grant which was
February 5, 2013, the Committee targeted a Burn Rate (computed as total shares subject to option grants to all employees including Officers for
the entire fiscal year divided by total outstanding shares as of December 31, 2012) of approximately 2.5%. For our annual stock option grant in
connection with the Company�s fiscal year 2013 performance appraisal, the date of grant which was January 31, 2014, the Committee targeted a
Burn Rate (computed as total shares subject to option grants to all employees including Officers for the entire fiscal year divided by total
outstanding shares as of December 31, 2013) of approximately 1.6%.

The factors used by the Committee to determine the specific number of shares underlying any stock option grant to any individual Officer other
than the CEO and the CSO are the individual performance of such Officer during the relevant fiscal year and the performance of the Company as
a whole against the Corporate Objectives. As with bonuses, the specific number of shares underlying the stock option grants to our CEO and
CSO is determined based on the performance of the Company as a whole against the Corporate Objectives.

In addition, our Board of Directors and Compensation Committee may grant equity compensation to our Officers and employees at any time for
incentive and retention purposes in keeping with our non-cash equity compensation practices outlined below.

Perquisites

Except as otherwise described in this Proxy Statement, our Officers are entitled to no benefits that are not otherwise available to all of our
employees. In this regard it should be noted that we do not provide pension arrangements (other than our 401(k) plan), post-retirement health
coverage or similar benefits for our Officers or employees.

The perquisites we provided in fiscal 2013 were as follows. We provide life insurance to all employees (including Officers) with a limit of three
times the employee�s salary (up to $250,000 of insurance per employee). The premium on over $50,000 of life insurance is treated as taxable
income and is reported on W-2 forms of all employees. In addition, we provide medical, dental and vision insurance, accidental death and
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dismemberment insurance, short-term and long-term disability insurance to all employees. We pay for approximately 85% of the total premium
for medical, dental and vision insurance, respectively, and 100% of the total premium for accidental death and dismemberment insurance,
short-term and long-term disability insurance. Our Officers, as with our employees, are eligible to participate in our 2000 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan.

Post-Employment Compensation

Pension Benefits

We do not provide pension arrangements or post-retirement health coverage for our executives or employees. Our executive officers, as with all
eligible employees, are eligible to participate in our 401(k) plan. We do not provide matching contributions for any of our employees including
our Officers.

Nonqualified Deferred Compensation

We do not provide any nonqualified deferred contribution or other deferred compensation plans.

Other Post-Employment Payments

All of our employees, including our Officers, are employees-at-will and as such do not have employment contracts with us. We also do not
provide post-employment health coverage or other benefits, except in connection with the change of control agreements, details of which are
included below under �Change of Control Agreements.�

Stock Option Practices

Overview

It is our practice to grant stock options to all of our employees. Stock options award levels are determined based on market data and vary among
individuals based on their positions within the Company and their individual performance. Stock Options are generally granted in connection
with:

� the hiring of employees (including Officers);

� the promotion of employees (including Officers);

� the annual performance appraisal of employees (including Officers);

� rewarding certain employees (including Officers) for exceptional accomplishments; and

� from time to time for incentive and retention purposes.
We also, from time-to-time, and on an infrequent basis, grant stock options to certain consultants with specialized skills who provide important
services to us. All of our stock options are granted under and pursuant to the terms of our 2000 Stock Plan (the �Plan�).

Authority

The Board has delegated the authority to grant stock options under specified terms and conditions to a committee consisting of our CEO, CSO
and CFO (the �Officer Committee�) in connection with the hiring and promotion of non-Officer employees and the rewarding of non-Officer
employees for exceptional performance. Other than as expressly delegated by the Committee or the Board in accordance with the Stock Plan, the
authority to grant stock options and other equity compensation resides exclusively with the Committee or the Board. In particular, the
Committee or the Board has the exclusive authority to grant stock options to Directors and Officers.
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Timing of Grants

Options to newly hired Officers are approved by action of our Board or the Committee by meeting or unanimous written consent prior to and
granted effective as of the first day of employment of such Officer, typically at the same time as the ratification of their employment. Options to
newly hired employees who are not Officers and where the number of shares underlying the stock option grant does not exceed 50,000 shares
are granted by unanimous written consent of the Officer Committee on the tenth business day of the subsequent calendar month of their hire, and
the Officer Committee meets or acts by unanimous written consent on or before the tenth business day of the calendar month to approve the
option grants to be made on the tenth business day of the calendar month.

Annual grants of stock options to our employees and Officers are made usually in January or February of each year after the conclusion of our
annual Company-wide performance appraisal of all employees for the previous fiscal year. Even though the Committee may complete the
evaluation of the performance of Officers prior to the completion of the performance appraisal process for the entire Company, it has been our
practice in the last several years to grant the stock options to Officers simultaneously with the grant of stock options to our employees.

Other than as described above with respect to newly hired employees, it is our practice to grant stock options (such as in connection with
promotions, rewarding exceptional accomplishments and grants to consultants) effective on the date of the Board, Committee or Officer
Committee�s action by meeting or unanimous written consent.

We do not have a policy that precludes the granting of stock options when the Company or the Board is in possession of material nonpublic
information or at certain periods in relation to our earnings releases. Although the Committee has considered whether such a policy would be
advisable, the Committee does not feel that adoption of such policy is warranted at present since we grant stock options based on timelines in the
normal course of business independent of the occurrence of these types of events (e.g., at a pre-established date each month for newly hired
employees, on the first date of employment for newly hired Officers or upon the completion of the Company�s annual performance appraisal with
respect to the annual grant). The Committee will periodically review the need for any such type of policy on timing, but at present, reserves the
right to grant stock options at any time consistent with our policies, the Stock Plan and applicable laws and regulations.

Exercise Price and Other Terms

The exercise price for stock options we grant is the fair market value of our common stock as defined in the Stock Plan, which is the closing
price on the day of the grant of our common stock on the NASDAQ Global Market. Stock options granted to our employees (including Officers)
typically have a term of 10 years. Annual grants of stock options in 2013 and 2014 generally vest on a quarterly basis over four years following
the date of grant. Options in lieu of cash bonus generally vest immediately on the date of grant. Options in lieu of salary generally vest quarterly
over one (1) year following the date of grant. On an infrequent basis, the Board or the Committee has granted stock options to employees
(including Officers) with different vesting patterns consistent with the Stock Plan. The term and vesting of options granted to consultants vary
depending on the circumstances.

Stock options, subject to required vesting, are exercisable for the term of the option so long as the optionee maintains continuous status as an
employee or consultant with the Company. Generally, we have granted options that provide that if an optionee�s service to the Company as an
employee, consultant or director terminates, such individual�s vested options will remain exercisable for periods of between 60 days and a year,
with special longer periods of two years for certain director options and for up to seven years for certain options granted in lieu of salary or
director fees. The Administrator shall have the authority to extend the period of time for which an option is to remain exercisable following
optionee�s termination; provided that in no event will an option be exercisable later than the expiration of the term of the option.
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Hedging and Stock Ownership Policies

Our insider trading policy provides that all employees and Officers may not engage in any transactions that suggest speculation in our stock (that
is, an attempt to profit in short-term movements, either increases or decreases, in the stock price). The policy notes that many �hedging�
transactions, such as �collar� transactions, contingent or forward sales, and other similar or related arrangements, are prohibited. Specifically, our
insider trading policy precludes any employee or Officer from engaging in any �short� sale, �sale against the box� or any equivalent transaction
involving our stock (or the stock of any of our business partners in any of the situations described above).

We do not have a stock ownership policy.

Most Recent Advisory Vote on Executive Compensation

The Committee noted that at the 2013 Annual Meeting held on June 25, 2013, the Company�s executive compensation was approved on a
non-binding, advisory basis based upon the following votes:

For Against Abstain Broker Non-Vote
54,721,026 834,573 200,671 33,886,369

Tax and Accounting Implications

Deductibility of Executive Compensation

Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the �Code�), generally disallows a tax deduction to public companies for
compensation in excess of $1 million paid during a single year to a corporation�s chief executive officer and four other most highly paid
executive officers. Qualifying performance-based compensation will not be subject to the deduction limitation if certain requirements are met.
We periodically review the potential consequences of Section 162(m) and may structure the performance-based portion of our executive
compensation with the intent to comply with certain exemptions available under Section 162(m). However, we reserve the right to use our
judgment to authorize compensation payments that do not comply with the exemptions in Section 162(m) when we believe that such payments
are appropriate and in the best interests of the stockholders, after taking into consideration changing business conditions or the officer�s
performance.

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation is estimated at the date of grant based on the stock award�s fair value using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model
and is recognized as expense ratably over the requisite period in a manner similar to other forms of compensation paid to employees and
directors. Our financial statements include more information regarding accounting for stock-based compensation.
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COMPENSATION OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The following table shows for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011, compensation awarded to or paid to, or earned by, our
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and our two other most highly compensated executive officers at December 31, 2013 (our
�Named Executive Officers�)

In 2013, 2012, and 2011, we did not grant any stock awards and we do not currently offer pension or nonqualified deferred compensation plans.

Summary Compensation Table for Fiscal 2013

Name and Principal Position Year
Salary
($)

Bonus
(1)($)

Option Awards
(2)($)

Non-Equity
Incentive
Plan

Compensation
(3)($)

All Other
Compensation

(4)($)
Total
($)

James E. Brown, D.V.M (5) 2013 450,712 � 291,585 � 22,778 764,575
President and Chief Executive Officer 2012 454,885 � 120,823 � 22,783 598,491

2011 500,791 � 460,404 � 20,247 981,442

Matthew J. Hogan, M.B.A. (6) 2013 310,499 � 171,488 � 8,012 489,999
Chief Financial Officer 2012 301,266 � 86,889 � 22,759 410,914

2011 315,738 � 306,936 � 20,247 642,921

Felix Theeuwes, D.Sc. (7) 2013 248,221 � 344,208 � 15,692 608,121
Chairman and Chief Scientific Officer 2012 269,005 � 196,032 � 15,943 480,979

2011 497,628 � 460,404 � 14,171 972,203

Su Il Yum, Ph.D. (8) 2013 298,150 � 177,282 � 15,750 491,182
Executive Vice President, Pharmaceutical Systems
R&D

2012 293,572 � 109,332 � 16,001 418,905
2011 323,198 � 306,936 � 14,171 644,305

(1) Our cash bonuses are paid under an incentive plan and therefore are reported in the column �Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation.�
(2) Amounts shown represent the aggregate grant date fair value of the stock option grant in the year indicated. For more information, please

see Note 8 of the consolidated financial statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013 regarding
assumptions underlying the valuation of equity awards.

(3) No cash bonuses were awarded or paid to the Named Executive Officers in the first quarter of 2012 and 2013 relative to 2011 and 2012
performance. Cash bonuses were awarded in the first quarter of 2014 relative to 2013 performance to James E. Brown ($60,095), Matthew
J. Hogan ($26,301), Felix Theeuwes ($44,786), and Su Il Yum ($26,715); subsequently, these cash bonuses were voluntarily declined by
the Named Executive Officers. For a description of the non-equity incentive plan, see the discussion following �Grants of Plan-Based
Awards in 2013.�

(4) Includes amounts associated with insurance premiums we pay for Accidental Death and Dismemberment (AD&D), Life, Medical, Dental,
Vision, short-term and long-term disability insurance, which are available to all employees.

(5) Dr. Brown�s notional salary for fiscal year 2014 increased by 3% to $515,814 effective April 1, 2014 compared to $500,791 effective
April 1, 2013. There was no change to Dr. Brown�s notional salary for fiscal year 2013 compared to fiscal years 2012 and 2011 (i.e.,
$500,791). However, to more closely align the interests of the Company�s named executive officers with the interests of the Company�s
stockholders, Dr. Brown volunteered to receive a reduced portion of his salary in cash and accordingly his cash salary was reduced by
$50,000 to $465,814 effective April 1, 2014 and by $50,079 to $450,712 effective February 1, 2012. In lieu of this cash compensation, he
was granted a stock option to purchase 48,077, 63,391 and 96,306 shares of the Company�s common stock in March 2014, February 2013
and 2012, respectively. The
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vesting associated with the option is as follows: one-fourth (1/4) of the total shares subject to the option shall vest quarterly over one
(1) year following the date of grant, subject to continued service. In the event of Dr. Brown�s termination of service with the Company for a
reason other than Cause, the post-termination exercise period for the options shall be seven (7) years, subject to the ten (10) year term of
the option. In February 2014, Dr. Brown voluntarily declined a cash bonus of $60,095 for his performance in fiscal year 2013.

(6) Mr. Hogan�s notional salary for fiscal year 2014 increased by 3% to $334,966 effective April 1, 2014 compared to $325,210 effective
April 1, 2013. There was no change to Mr. Hogan�s notional salary for fiscal year 2012 as compared to fiscal year 2011 (i.e., $315,738).
However, to more closely align the interests of the Company�s named executive officers with the interests of the Company�s stockholders,
Mr. Hogan volunteered to receive a reduced portion of his salary in cash and accordingly his cash salary was reduced by $16,750 to
$318,216 effective April 1, 2014 and by $15,787 to $309,423 and $299,951 effective April 1, 2013 and February 1, 2012, respectively. In
lieu of this cash compensation, he was granted a stock option to purchase 16,106, 19,984 and 30,359 shares of the Company�s common
stock in March 2014, February 2013 and 2012, respectively. The vesting associated with the option is as follows: one-fourth (1/4) of the
total shares subject to the option shall vest quarterly over one (1) year following the date of grant, subject to continued service. In the event
of Mr. Hogan�s termination of service with the Company for a reason other than Cause, the post-termination exercise period for the options
shall be seven (7) years, subject to the ten (10) year term of the option. In February 2014, Mr. Hogan voluntarily declined a cash bonus of
$26,301 for his performance in fiscal year 2013.

(7) Dr. Theeuwes� notional salary for fiscal year 2014 increased by 3% to $384,417 effective April 1, 2014 compared to$373,221 effective
April 1, 2013. There was no change to Dr. Theeuwes� notional salary for fiscal year 2013 as compared to fiscal year 2012 (i.e., $373,221).
Dr. Theeuwes� notional salary for fiscal years 2012 represented an approximately 25% decrease as compared to his salary for fiscal year
2011. This decrease reflected a transition to 75% time for fiscal year 2012, effective February 1, 2012. In addition, in order to preserve
cash and to more closely align the interests of the Company�s named executive officers with the interests of the Company�s shareholders,
Dr. Theeuwes volunteered to receive a reduction by $125,000 in the portion of his salary to be paid in cash to $259,417 and $248,221
effective April 1, 2014 and February 1, 2012, respectively. In lieu of this cash compensation, he was granted a stock option to purchase
120,912, 158,228 and 240,385 shares of the Company�s common stock in March 2014, February 2013 and 2012, respectively. The vesting
associated with these options is as follows: one-fourth (1/4) of the total shares subject to the option shall vest quarterly over one (1) year
following the date of grant, subject to continued service. In the event of Dr. Theeuwes� termination of service with the Company for a
reason other than Cause, the post-termination exercise period for the options shall be seven (7) years, subject to the ten (10) year term of
the option. In February 2014, Dr. Theeuwes voluntarily declined a cash bonus of $44,786 for his performance in fiscal year 2013.

(8) Dr. Yum�s notional salary for fiscal year 2014 increased by 3% to $342,881 effective April 1, 2014 compared to $332,894 effective April 1,
2013. There was no change to Dr. Yum�s notional salary for fiscal year 2012 compared to fiscal year 2011 (i.e., $323,198). However, to
more closely align the interests of the Company�s named executive officers with the interests of the Company�s stockholders, Dr. Yum
volunteered to receive a reduced portion of his salary in cash and accordingly his cash salary was reduced by $32,320 to $300,574 and
$290,878 effective April 1, 2013 and February 1, 2012, respectively. In lieu of this cash compensation, he was granted a stock option to
purchase 40,911 and 62,153 shares of the Company�s common stock in February 2013 and 2012, respectively. The vesting associated with
these options is as follows: one-fourth (1/4) of the total shares subject to the option shall vest quarterly over one (1) year following the date
of grant, subject to continued service. In the event of Dr. Yum�s termination of service with the Company for a reason other than Cause, the
post-termination exercise period for the options shall be seven (7) years, subject to the ten (10) year term of the option. In February 2014,
Dr. Yum voluntarily declined a cash bonus of $26,715 for his performance in fiscal year 2013.
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GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS

The following table shows, certain information regarding grants of plan-based awards to our Named Executive Officers for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2013:

Grants of Plan-Based Awards in Fiscal 2013

Name Grant Date

All Other

Option Awards:

Number of

Securities

Underlying
Options(#)

Exercise or
Base Price 

of

Option Awards
(1)($/Share)

Grant Date

Fair Value of

Stock and

Option Awards
(2)($)

James E. Brown (3) 2/5/13 130,000(4) 1.21 111,449
2/5/13 63,391(5) 1.21 56,266
2/5/13 150,237(6) 1.21 123,870

Matthew J. Hogan (7) 2/5/13 115,000(4) 1.21 98,590
2/5/13 19,984(5) 1.21 17,738
2/5/13 66,902(6) 1.21 55,161

Felix Theeuwes (8) 2/5/13 130,000(4) 1.21 111,449
2/5/13 158,228(5) 1.21 140,443
2/5/13 111,966(6) 1.21 92,316

Su Il Yum (9) 2/5/13 100,000(4) 1.21 85,730
2/5/13 40,911(5) 1.21 36,313
2/5/13 66,998(6) 1.21 55,240

(1) The exercise price per share of such option grant was the closing price of our common stock on the NASDAQ Global Market on the date
of grant.

(2) Amounts shown represent the fair value per share as of the grant date of the award multiplied by the number of shares. For more
information, please see Note 8 of the consolidated financial statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2013 regarding assumptions underlying the valuation of equity awards.

(3) Dr. Brown received a stock option grant of 130,000 shares for his performance in fiscal year 2012, which vest as described in footnote 4, a
stock option grant to purchase 63,391 shares of the Company�s common stock in lieu of cash salary compensation which vest as described
in footnote 5, and an additional stock option grant (reflecting zero cash bonus for 2012) of 150,237 shares which vested immediately in
February 2013. For Dr. Brown�s performance in fiscal year 2013, he received in January 2014 a stock option grant of 150,000 shares,
which vest as described in footnote 4 and an additional stock option grant in lieu of cash bonus of 117,068 shares which vested
immediately.

(4) All options were granted under our 2000 Stock Plan. The vesting associated with the option is as follows: one-sixteenth (1/16) of the total
shares subject to the option shall vest quarterly over four (4) years following the date of grant, subject to continued service.

(5) Represents options in lieu of salary base granted by the Compensation Committee on February 5, 2013. All options were granted under our
2000 Stock Plan. The vesting associated with the option is as follows: one-fourth (1/4) of the total shares subject to the option shall vest
quarterly over one (1) year following the date of grant, subject to continued service.

(6) All options were granted under our 2000 Stock Plan. The shares subject to the bonus options are fully vested upon grant.
(7) Mr. Hogan received a stock option grant of 115,000 shares for his performance in fiscal year 2012, which vest as described in footnote 4, a

stock option grant to purchase 19,984 shares of the Company�s common stock in lieu of cash salary compensation which vest as described
in footnote 5, and an additional stock option grant (reflecting zero cash bonus for 2012) of 66,902 shares which vested immediately in
February
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2013. For Mr. Hogan�s performance in fiscal year 2013, he received in January 2014 a stock option grant of 125,000 shares, which vest as
described in footnote 4 and an additional stock option grant in lieu of cash bonus of 51,236 shares which vested immediately.

(8) Dr. Theeuwes received a stock option grant of 130,000 shares for his performance in fiscal year 2012, which vest as described in footnote
4, a stock option grant to purchase 158,228 shares of the Company�s common stock in lieu of cash salary compensation which vest as
described in footnote 5, and an additional stock option grant (reflecting zero cash bonus for 2012) of 111,966 shares which vested
immediately in February 2013. For Dr. Theeuwes� performance in fiscal year 2013, he received in January 2014 a stock option grant of
125,000 shares, which vest as described in footnote 4 and an additional stock option grant in lieu of cash bonus of 87,247 shares which
vested immediately.

(9) Dr. Yum received a stock option grant of 100,000 shares for his performance in fiscal year 2012, which vest as described in footnote 4, a
stock option grant to purchase 40,911 shares of the Company�s common stock in lieu of cash salary compensation which vest as described
in footnote 5, and an additional stock option grant (reflecting zero cash bonus for 2012) of 66,998 shares which vested immediately in
February 2013. For Dr. Yum�s performance in fiscal year 2013, he received in January 2014 a stock option grant of 90,000 shares, which
vest as described in footnote 4 and an additional stock option grant in lieu of cash bonus of 52,042 shares which vested immediately.

With respect to Non-Equity Incentive Plan Awards for fiscal year 2013, the Compensation Committee set specific corporate targets and goals as
described in �Compensation Discussion and Analysis�Bonus (Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation)� above.
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OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR�EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The following table shows for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013, certain information regarding outstanding option awards at fiscal
year-end for our Named Executive Officers. All options were granted under our 2000 Stock Plan. In addition, there were no stock awards
outstanding for the individuals named below at December 31, 2013.

Outstanding Option Awards At December 31, 2013

Name

Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Options
(#)

Exercisable

Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Options (#)
Unexercisable

Equity Incentive
Plan Awards:
Number of 
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Unearned
Options (#)

Option
Exercise
Price ($)

Option
Grant Date

Option
Expiration Date

James E. Brown 225,000 0 � 3.25 1/14/2004(1) 1/14/2014
125,000 0 � 3.20 12/17/2004(1) 12/17/2014
250,000 0 � 5.27 1/6/2006(1) 1/6/2016
175,000 0 � 4.34 1/11/2007(1) 1/11/2017
175,000 0 � 5.89 1/18/2008(1) 1/18/2018
210,000 0 � 3.11 1/27/2009(2) 1/27/2019
113,000 0 � 2.09 5/21/2009(2) 5/21/2019
196,875 13,125 � 2.18 1/22/2010(2) 1/22/2020
79,432 0 � 2.18 1/22/2010(3) 1/22/2020
144,375 65,625 � 3.26 1/20/2011(2) 1/20/2021
56,875 73,125 � 0.78 2/3/2012(4) 2/3/2022
96,306 0 � 0.78 2/3/2012(5) 2/3/2022
24,375 105,625 � 1.21 2/5/2013(4) 2/5/2023
47,543 15,848 � 1.21 2/5/2013(5) 2/5/2023
150,237 0 � 1.21 2/5/2013(3) 2/5/2023

Matthew J. Hogan 200,000 0 � 3.76 9/11/2006(1) 9/11/2016
90,000 0 � 4.34 1/11/2007(1) 1/11/2017
110,000 0 � 5.89 1/18/2008(1) 1/18/2018
125,000 0 � 3.11 1/27/2009(2) 1/27/2019
66,000 0 � 2.09 5/21/2009(2) 5/21/2019
131,250 8,750 � 2.18 1/22/2010(2) 1/22/2020
39,284 0 � 2.18 1/22/2010(3) 1/22/2020
96,250 43,750 � 3.26 1/20/2011(2) 1/20/2021
45,937 59,063 � 0.78 2/3/2012(4) 2/3/2022
27,191 0 � 0.78 2/3/2012(3) 2/3/2022
30,359 0 � 0.78 2/3/2012(5) 2/3/2022
21,562 93,438 � 1.21 2/5/2013(4) 2/5/2023
14,988 4,996 � 1.21 2/5/2013(5) 2/5/2023
66,902 0 � 1.21 2/5/2013(3) 2/5/2023

Felix Theeuwes 225,000 0 � 3.25 1/14/2004(1) 1/14/2014
125,000 0 � 3.20 12/17/2004(1) 12/17/2014
250,000 0 � 5.27 1/6/2006(1) 1/6/2016
175,000 0 � 4.34 1/11/2007(1) 1/11/2017
175,000 0 � 5.89 1/18/2008(1) 1/18/2018
210,000 0 � 3.11 1/27/2009(2) 1/27/2019
113,000 0 � 2.09 5/21/2009(2) 5/21/2019
196,875 13,125 � 2.18 1/22/2010(2) 1/22/2020
81,443 0 � 2.18 1/22/2010(3) 1/22/2020
144,375 65,625 � 3.26 1/20/2011(2) 1/20/2021
56,875 73,125 � 0.78 2/3/2012(4) 2/3/2022
240,385 0 � 0.78 2/3/2012(5) 2/3/2022
24,375 105,625 � 1.21 2/5/2013(4) 2/5/2023
118,671 39,557 � 1.21 2/5/2013(5) 2/5/2023
111,966 0 � 1.21 2/5/2013(3) 2/5/2023

Su Il Yum 100,000 0 � 2.51 2/27/2004(1) 2/27/2014
100,000 0 � 3.20 12/17/2004(1) 12/17/2014
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120,000 0 � 5.27 1/6/2006(1) 1/6/2016
131,000 0 � 4.34 1/11/2007(1) 1/11/2017
110,000 0 � 5.89 1/18/2008(1) 1/18/2018
140,000 0 � 3.11 1/27/2009(2) 1/27/2019
74,000 0 � 2.09 5/21/2009(2) 5/21/2019
117,187 7,813 � 2.18 1/22/2010(2) 1/22/2020
39,029 0 � 2.18 1/22/2010(3) 1/22/2020
96,250 43,750 � 3.26 1/20/2011(2) 1/20/2021
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Name

Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Options
(#)

Exercisable

Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Options (#)
Unexercisable

Equity Incentive
Plan Awards:
Number of 
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Unearned
Options
(#)

Option
Exercise
Price ($)

Option
Grant Date

Option
Expiration Date

Su Il Yum 35,938 64,688 � 0.78 2/3/2012(4) 2/3/2022
31,077 0 � 0.78 2/3/2012(5) 2/3/2022
18,750 81,250 � 1.21 2/5/2013(4) 2/5/2023
30,683 10,228 � 1.21 2/5/2013(5) 2/5/2023
66,998 0 � 1.21 2/5/2013(3) 2/5/2023

(1) The vesting associated with these option grants are as follows: one-fourth (1/4) of the total shares subject to such option shall vest on each one-year
anniversary of the date of grant.

(2) The vesting associated with these option grants are as follows: one-fourth (1/4) of the total shares subject to such option shall vest on the one-year anniversary
of the date of grant, and one-sixteenth (1/16) of the total shares subject to the option shall vest quarterly over three (3) years following the one-year
anniversary.

(3) The vesting associated with these option grants are as follows: 100% of the total shares subject to such option shall vest on the date of grant.
(4) The vesting associated with these option grants are as follows: one-sixteenth (1/16) of the total shares subject to the option shall vest quarterly over four

(4) years following the date of grant, subject to continued service.
(5) The vesting associated with these option grants are as follows: one-fourth (1/4) of the total shares subject to the option shall vest quarterly over one (1) year

following the date of grant, subject to continued service.
EXERCISES

The following table shows for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013, certain information regarding option exercises and stock vested during
the last fiscal year with respect to our Named Executive Officers:

Option Exercises in Fiscal 2013 (1)

Name

Option Awards
Number of
Shares

Acquired on
Exercise (#)

Value
Realized

on
Exercise ($)

James E. Brown � �
Matthew J. Hogan � �
Felix Theeuwes � �
Su Il Yum � �

(1) We do not currently utilize stock awards as part of our compensation plan. As such, we do not include information regarding stock awards
that would otherwise appear as blank columns in this table.
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CHANGE OF CONTROL AGREEMENTS

In April 2004, our Board of Directors adopted a change of control policy applicable to our officers who hold the rank of Vice President and
above (who are not party to any other change of control agreement with us) which provides that, in the event that such officer�s employment is
terminated without cause or constructively terminated, in connection with and prior to a change in our control, or within twenty-four months
following a change in our control, then: (1) the unvested portion of any stock option held by such officer shall automatically accelerate so as to
become completely vested as of the effective date of the termination, and (2) such officer shall receive a cash payment equal to one year of such
officer�s then current salary, provided that such cash payment will be equal to two years of such officer�s then current salary in the case of James
E. Brown or Felix Theeuwes. Any such benefits are conditioned upon such officer delivering to us an effective release releasing us or our
successor from any and all claims the officer may have against such entities related to or arising in connection with his or her employment, term
of such employment and termination thereof, and the officer agreeing, for the period during which she or he is receiving or has received payment
of cash severance (but not exceeding two years), he or she will not, directly or indirectly, act as a partner, joint venturer, consultant, officer,
director, employee, agent, independent contractor or stockholder of any company or business organization (including any unit or division of any
company or organization) whose business is the development and marketing of products and services that are directly competitive with the
products and services being developed and marketed by us immediately prior to our change of control. In September 2008, we amended the
policy for compliance with Section 409A of the Code such that any such cash payment shall be payable in equal installments over the twelve
month period, subject to a six month delay as required to avoid adverse tax consequences to �specified employees� under Code Section 409A. In
December 2013, we further amended the policy to conform with Code Section 409A and other legal requirements.

In April 2004, our Board of Directors adopted a change of control policy applicable to all employees other than officers who hold the rank of
Vice President and above which provides that, in the event that such employee�s employment is terminated without cause or constructively
terminated, in connection with and prior to a change in our control, or within twenty-four months following a change in our control, then: (1) the
unvested portion of any stock option held by such employee shall automatically accelerate so as to become completely vested as of the effective
date of the termination, and (2) such employee shall receive a payment of 2 weeks of such employee�s then current salary for each full year of
employment with us (taking into consideration the period of employment by the surviving entity as employment with us), up to a maximum total
severance payment equal to 12 months of such employee�s then current salary. Had a change in control occurred during fiscal 2013 and had their
employment been terminated on December 31, 2013, our Named Executive Officers would have been eligible to receive the payments set forth
in the columns under the heading �Terminations Within 24 Months of a Change in Control� in the table below.

Terminations Within 24 Months of a Change in Control

Name
Severance
Payments

Value of
Accelerated
Unvested
Options (1)

James E. Brown $ 1,001,582 $ 132,635
Matthew J. Hogan $ 325,210 $ 107,296
Felix Theeuwes $ 746,442 $ 144,963
Su Il Yum $ 332,894 $ 109,022

(1) The value of accelerated vesting of the options is based solely on the excess, if any, of $1.73 per share, the closing market price on
December 31, 2013, over the exercise price of the unvested portion (as of December 31, 2013) of our Named Executive Officers� stock
options. Because many of our stock options have exercise prices higher than our current stock price, if our stock value was higher at the
time of any actual termination of employment, additional stock options could have considerable value.
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DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Overview of Compensation and Procedures

The Compensation Committee reviews the level of compensation of our non-employee directors on an annual basis. To determine how
appropriate the current level of compensation for our non-employee directors is, we have historically obtained data from a number of different
sources including:

� publicly available data describing director compensation in peer companies;

� survey data collected by our human resources department; and

� information obtained directly from other companies.
In 2009 and 2012, the Compensation Committee retained J. Richard & Co., an independent compensation consultant, to analyze director
compensation programs used by public life sciences companies comparable to us. Based upon J. Richard & Co.�s analysis and input, the
Compensation Committee determined that our director compensation was below that provided by companies comparable to us. As a result of
these findings, and in an effort to ensure our ability to attract and retain qualified directors, we changed our non-employee director compensation
structure in December 2009, in April 2013 and in September 2013. In 2013, the Compensation Committee retained Setren Smallberg and
Associates, Inc., an independent compensation consulting firm, to analyze the director compensation programs. As a result of that review, we
increased the number of options granted to non-employee directors when they first become a director (from 35,000 shares to 70,000). All other
board compensation practices remained unchanged.

We compensate non-employee members of the board through a mixture of cash and equity-based compensation. Effective December 2009, each
non-employee director is eligible to receive an attendance fee of $1,500 for each Board meeting attended and $500 for each telephonic Board
meeting, and a cash retainer fee equal to $30,000 per year (increased in December 2009 from $25,000 per year) paid on a quarterly basis in
arrears. In addition, for each Board committee on which a non-employee director serves, he or she shall be eligible to receive an attendance fee
of $1,000 for each committee meeting attended and a cash retainer fee equal to $8,000, $6,000 and $5,000 per year for serving on the Audit
Committee, Compensation Committee, and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee respectively (as compared to $7,500, $5,000 and
$5,000 per year respectively for 2009) paid on a quarterly basis in arrears; provided that the cash retainer to be received by the chairperson of the
Audit Committee, the Compensation Committee, and the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is $22,500, $15,000 per year and
$12,000 per year, respectively, each paid on a quarterly basis in arrears.

In February 2013, to preserve cash and more closely align the interests of the Company�s directors with the interests of the Company�s
stockholders, the non-employee directors agreed to receive a portion of their retainers in stock options. The total shares subject to each option in
lieu of cash retainer was determined by using a standard Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The exercise price per share of the options was
$1.21, the closing price of the Company�s common stock on the NASDAQ Global Market on the date of grant. The vesting associated with the
options is as follows: one-fourth (1/4) of the total shares subject to the option shall vest quarterly over one (1) year following the date of grant,
subject to continued service. In the event of the optionee�s termination of service with the Company for a reason other than Cause, the
post-termination exercise period for the options shall be seven (7) years, subject to the ten (10) year term of the option.

Name

Amount of Retainers
Provided As
Options ($)

Option Awards
(Number of Shares

subject to
option grant)

Simon X. Benito $ 15,000 18,987
Terrence F. Blaschke, M.D. $ 15,000 18,987
Michael D. Casey $ 15,000 18,987
David R. Hoffmann $ 37,500 47,468
Armand P. Neukermans, Ph.D. $ 15,000 18,987
Jon S. Saxe $ 15,000 18,987
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In March 2014, to preserve cash and more closely align the interests of the Company�s directors with the interests of the Company�s stockholders,
the non-employee directors also agreed to receive a portion of their retainers in stock options. The total shares subject to each option in lieu of
cash retainer was determined by using a standard Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The exercise price per share of the options was $1.36, the
closing price of the Company�s common stock on the NASDAQ Global Market on the date of grant. The vesting associated with the options is as
follows: one-fourth (1/4) of the total shares subject to the option shall vest quarterly over one (1) year following the date of grant, subject to
continued service. In the event of the optionee�s termination of service with the Company for a reason other than Cause, the post-termination
exercise period for the options shall be seven (7) years, subject to the ten (10) year term of the option.

Name

Amount of Retainers
Provided As
Options ($)

Option Awards
(Number of Shares

subject to
option grant)

Simon X. Benito $ 15,000 14,423
Terrence F. Blaschke, M.D. $ 15,000 14,423
David R. Hoffmann $ 37,500 36,058
Armand P. Neukermans, Ph.D. $ 15,000 14,423
Jon S. Saxe $ 15,000 14,423
Jay Shepard $ 15,000 14,423
All of our current non-employee directors receive stock option grants as part of their compensation for their service. When each non-employee
director first becomes a director, he or she receives nonstatutory options to purchase shares of our common stock, which by approval of the
Board of Directors was increased by 5,000 shares to a total of 35,000 shares in December 2009 and was increased again by 35,000 shares to a
total of 70,000 shares in September 2013 as a result of the review by our independent compensation consultant. These options have a ten-year
term and become exercisable in installments of one-third of the total number of shares granted on each anniversary of the grant. Additionally,
each director who has served for at least 6 months will receive options to purchase an additional 20,000 shares of our common stock on the date
of the annual stockholder meeting (Annual Grant), which by approval of the Board of Directors was increased by 5,000 shares to a total of
25,000 shares in December 2009 and was increased again by 10,000 shares to a total of 35,000 shares in April 2013, and such Annual Grant
vests on the day before the first anniversary of the date of grant of the Annual Grant. These options are for a ten-year term. In each case, the size
of the option grants would be adjusted to reflect any stock splits, stock dividends, combinations or similar transactions. The exercise price of the
options granted under our Directors� Plan must be at least 100% of the closing price of our common stock on the NASDAQ Global Market on the
date the option is granted. Options granted on or after June 24, 2013 may be exercised only (1) while the individual is serving as a director on
the Board, (2) within 12 months after termination by death or disability or (3) within 24 months after the individual�s term as director ends for
any other reason. Stock options to directors had been granted under our Directors� Plan until the expiration of the plan in September 2010, after
which stock options to directors have been granted under our 2000 Stock Plan.

Employee directors receive no additional compensation for serving on our Board of Directors.
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The following table sets forth certain information regarding the compensation of each non-employee member of our Board of Directors for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2013.

Director Compensation for Fiscal 2013

Name
Fees Earned

or Paid in Cash ($)
Option Awards

(1)($)
All Other

Compensation ($) Total ($)
Simon X. Benito 31,833 43,582 � 75,415
Terrence F. Blaschke, M.D. 21,750 43,582 � 65,332
Michael D. Casey 33,000 43,582 � 76,582
David R. Hoffmann 28,875 68,862 � 97,737
Armand P. Neukermans, Ph.D. 29,750 43,582 � 73,332
Jon S. Saxe 33,000 43,582 � 76,582
Jay Shepard (2) 10,736 70,238 � 80,974

(1) Amounts shown represent the aggregate grant date fair value of the stock option awards. In February 2013, options to purchase 142,403
shares of our common stock at $1.21 per share were granted under our 2000 Stock Plan to each of Drs. Blaschke and Neukermans and
Messrs. Benito, Casey, Hoffmann and Saxe in lieu of cash retainer. For more information, please see �Director Compensation�. In June
2013, an option to purchase 35,000 shares of our common stock at $1.05 per share was granted under our 2000 Stock Plan to each of Drs.
Blaschke and Neukermans and Messrs. Benito, Casey, Hoffmann and Saxe. In September 2013, an option to purchase 70,000 shares of our
common stock at $1.34 per share was granted under our 2000 Stock Plan to Jay Shepard. For more information, please see Note 8 of the
Notes to Financial Statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013 regarding the assumptions
underlying the valuation of equity awards.

(2) Mr. Shepard joined the board in September 2013.
OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR END�DIRECTORS

The following table sets forth certain information regarding outstanding equity awards at December 31, 2013 of all of our non-employee
directors:

Number of Securities
Underlying Unexercised

Options (#)
Name Exercisable Unexercisable
Simon X. Benito 199,240 39,747
Terrence F. Blaschke, M.D. 179,240 39,747
Michael D. Casey 211,240 39,747
David R. Hoffmann 202,601 46,867
Armand P. Neukermans, Ph.D. 193,240 39,747
Jon S. Saxe 193,240 39,747
Jay Shepard � 70,000
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EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

The following table provides information as of December 31, 2013 with respect to the shares of our common stock that may be issued under our
existing equity compensation plans.

Plan Category

Number of Securities
to be Issued Upon

Exercise of
Outstanding Options,
Warrants and Rights

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price of

Outstanding Options,
Warrants and 

Rights

Number of Securities
Remaining Available for

Future Issuance
Under

Equity Compensation
Plans (Excluding Securities

Reflected in Column
(a))

(a) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders (1) 23,696,584 $ 2.73 3,691,291(2)(3) 
Equity compensation plans not approved
by security holders � $ � �

Total 23,696,584 $ 2.73 3,691,291

(1) Consists of the following equity compensation plans: (i) our 2000 Stock Plan, (ii) our 2000 Directors� Stock Option Plan, and (iii) our 2000
Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

(2) Includes 3,445,914 shares of our common stock reserved under our 2000 Stock Plan.
(3) Includes 245,377 shares of our common stock reserved under our 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan for future issuance.

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS

In accordance with the Audit Committee charter, the Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and approving the terms and conditions of all
related party transactions (as defined in Item 404 of Reg. S-K), other than compensation transactions, which are subject to the auspices of the
Compensation Committee. Although we have not entered into any financial transactions with any immediate family member of any of our
directors or executive officers, if we were to do so, any such material financial transaction would need to be approved by the Audit Committee
before we enter into such a transaction. The Audit Committee also reviews and approves our proxy statement and the information contained
therein.

OTHER TRANSACTIONS

During the last fiscal year, we granted options to purchase common stock to our employees and directors as reported in this proxy statement.

We have entered into indemnification agreements with each of our directors and executive officers. Such agreements require us, among other
things, to indemnify our officers and directors, other than for liabilities arising from willful misconduct of a culpable nature, and to advance their
expenses incurred as a result of any proceedings against them as to which they could be indemnified.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in any of the our filings under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Exchange Act that might
incorporate future filings, including this Proxy Statement, in whole or in part, the Compensation Committee Report and the Audit Committee
Report shall not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any such filings.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The Compensation Committee has:

� reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis included in this proxy statement with management; and

� based on this review and discussion, the Compensation Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that the Compensation
Discussion and Analysis be included in this proxy statement.

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of DURECT Corporation:

Simon Benito

David R. Hoffmann

Armand P. Neukermans

Jon S. Saxe

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors currently consists of Simon Benito, David R. Hoffmann, Armand P. Neukermans and
Jon S. Saxe. No member of the committee nor any executive officer of the Company has a relationship that would constitute an interlocking
relationship with executive officers or directors of another entity.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

As required by NASDAQ rules, the Audit Committee of the DURECT Corporation Board of Directors is composed of three independent
directors. The committee operates under a written charter adopted by the Board of Directors in March 2000 and last revised in June 2013.

The Audit Committee recommends to the Board of Directors, subject to stockholder ratification, the selection of an accounting firm to be
engaged as the Company�s independent registered public accounting firm. The independent registered public accounting firm is responsible for
performing an independent audit of the Company�s financial statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and to issue a
report thereon. Management is responsible for our internal controls and the financial reporting process. The Audit Committee is responsible for
monitoring and overseeing these processes.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the fiscal year 2013. Management represented to the Audit Committee that our financial
statements were prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. In 2014, the Audit Committee met and reviewed
and discussed the audited financial statements for fiscal year 2013 with management and the Company�s independent registered public
accounting firm.

The Audit Committee discussed with the independent registered public accounting firm the matters required to be discussed by Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board Audit Standard No. 16, Communications with Audit Committees.

The Audit Committee has received and reviewed the written disclosures and the letter from the independent registered public accounting firm,
Ernst & Young LLP as required by applicable requirements of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board regarding the independent
accountant�s communications with the audit committee concerning independence. Additionally, the Audit Committee has discussed with Ernst &
Young LLP the issue of its independence from DURECT Corporation.

Based on its review of the audited financial statements and the various discussions noted above, the Audit Committee recommended to the
Board of Directors that the audited financial statements be included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2013.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of DURECT Corporation:

Simon X. Benito

David R. Hoffmann

Jon S. Saxe
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FEES BILLED FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT

During the fiscal years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, Ernst & Young LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm and
principal accountants, billed the fees set forth below. All Audit Fees, Audit-Related Fees, Tax Fees and Other Fees for 2013 and 2012 were
pre-approved by the Audit Committee according to the policies and procedures described above under the caption �The Board, Board Committees
and Meetings�Audit Committee.�

Years Ended
December 31,

2013 2012
Audit Fees $ 761,681 $ 755,384
Tax Fees 47,500 50,000
Other Fees � 3,075

$ 809,181 $ 808,459

Audit Fees

Fees for audit services include fees associated with the audits of our annual financial statements and the effectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 included in our Form 10-K and the review of the financial
statements included in our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q. Audit fees include fees for advice on audit and accounting matters that arose during,
or as a result of, the audit or the review of interim financial statements. The 2013 and 2012 audit fees also include approximately $68,430 and
$55,000, respectively, related to the review of SEC registration statements and issuance of consents.

Tax Fees

Tax fees include tax compliance services related to preparation of tax returns, responding to inquiries of the Internal Revenue Service and other
tax matters.

All Other Fees

Other fees consist of an annual subscription to on-line accounting information and updates.

SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires our directors, our executive officers and persons who own more than 10% of our common stock
(collectively, �Reporting Persons�) to file initial reports of ownership and changes in ownership of our common stock. Reporting Persons are
required by SEC regulations to furnish us with copies of all Section 16(a) reports they file. Based upon our review of the reporting forms we
received and written representations from certain persons that no other reports were required to be filed by those persons, we believe that all
filing requirements applicable to our officers, directors and 10% stockholders were complied with for fiscal year 2013.
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OTHER MATTERS

The Board of Directors knows of no other business that will be presented to the Annual Meeting. If any other business is properly brought before
the Annual Meeting, proxies in the enclosed form will be voted in respect thereof as the proxy holders deem advisable.

It is important that the proxies be returned promptly and that your shares be represented. Stockholders are urged to mark, date, execute and
promptly return the accompanying proxy card in the enclosed envelope or vote by telephone or the Internet as described on the proxy card.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

/s/ Matthew J. Hogan

Matthew J. Hogan

Chief Financial Officer and Secretary

April 23, 2014

Cupertino, California
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Exhibit 1

DURECT CORPORATION

2000 STOCK PLAN

(as amended on March 13, 2000)

(as further amended on March 31, 2000)

(as further amended on March 15, 2001)

(as further amended April 14, 2005)

(as further amended June 23, 2010)

(as further amended June 23, 2011)

(as further amended June 16, 2014)

1. Purposes of the Plan. The purposes of this 2000 Stock Plan are to attract and retain the best available personnel for positions of
substantial responsibility, to provide additional incentive to Employees and Consultants of the Company and its Subsidiaries and to
promote the success of the Company�s business. Options granted under the Plan may be Incentive Stock Options (as defined under
Section 422 of the Code) or Nonstatutory Stock Options, as determined by the Administrator at the time of grant of an option and subject
to the applicable provisions of Section 422 of the Code, as amended, and the regulations promulgated thereunder. Stock Grants, Stock
Units, Stock Appreciation Rights, Stock Purchase Rights and Cash Awards may also be granted under the Plan.

2. Definitions. As used herein, the following definitions shall apply:

(a) �Administrator� means the Board or any of its Committees appointed pursuant to Section 4 of the Plan.

(b) �Applicable Laws� means the legal requirements relating to the administration of stock option and restricted stock purchase plans
under applicable U.S. state corporate laws, U.S. federal and applicable state securities laws, the Code, any stock exchange rules or
regulations and the applicable laws of any other country or jurisdiction where Options or Stock Purchase Rights are granted under
the Plan, as such laws, rules, regulations and requirements shall be in place from time to time.

(c) �Award� means a Stock Award, a Cash Award or an Option granted in accordance with the terms of the Plan.

(d) �Award Agreement� means a Stock Award Agreement, Cash Award Agreement and/or Option Agreement, which may be in
written or electronic format, in such form and with such terms and conditions as may be specified by the Administrator,
evidencing the terms and conditions of an individual Award. Each Award Agreement is subject to the terms and conditions of the
Plan.

(e) �Board� means the Board of Directors of the Company.

(f)
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�Cash Award� means a bonus opportunity awarded under Section 14 pursuant to which a Participant may become entitled to
receive an amount based on the satisfaction of such performance criteria as are specified in the agreement or other documents
evidencing the Award (the �Cash Award Agreement�).

(g) �Code� means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Reference to a specific section of the Code or regulation thereunder
shall include such section or regulation, any valid regulation promulgated under such section, and any comparable provision of
any future legislation or regulation amending, supplementing or superseding such section or regulation.

(h) �Committee� means the Committee appointed by the Board of Directors in accordance with Section 4(a) and (b) of the Plan.

(i) �Common Stock� means the Common Stock of the Company.
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(j) �Company� means Durect Corporation, a Delaware corporation.

(k) �Consultant� means any person, including an advisor, who is engaged by the Company or any Parent or Subsidiary to render
consulting or advisory services and is compensated for such services, and any Director of the Company whether compensated for
services provided in his or her capacity as a Director or not.

(l) �Continuous Status as an Employee or Consultant� means the absence of any interruption or termination of service as an
Employee or Consultant. Continuous Status as an Employee or Consultant shall not be considered interrupted in the case of:
(i) sick leave; (ii) military leave; (iii) any other leave of absence approved by the Administrator, provided that such leave is for a
period of not more than three (3) months, unless reemployment upon the expiration of such leave is guaranteed by contract or
statute, or unless provided otherwise pursuant to Company policy adopted from time to time; or (iv) in the case of transfers
between locations of the Company or between the Company, its Subsidiaries or their respective successors. For purposes of this
Plan, a change in status from an Employee to a Consultant or from a Consultant to an Employee will not constitute an interruption
of Continuous Status as an Employee or Consultant.

(m) �Director� means a member of the Board of Directors of the Company.

(n) �Employee� means any person (including, if appropriate, Officers, Directors and Named Executives), employed by the Company or
any Parent or Subsidiary of the Company, with the status of employment determined based upon such minimum number of hours
or periods worked as shall be determined by the Administrator in its discretion, subject to any requirements of the Code. The
payment by the Company of a director�s fee to a Director shall not be sufficient to constitute �employment� of such Director by the
Company.

(o) �Exchange Act� means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

(p) �Fair Market Value� means, as of any date, the fair market value of Common Stock determined as follows:

(i) If the Common Stock is listed on any established stock exchange or a national market system including without
limitation The Nasdaq Global Select Market, The Nasdaq Global Market or The Nasdaq Capital Market of The Nasdaq
Stock Market, its Fair Market Value shall be the closing sales price for such stock (or the closing bid, if no sales were
reported), as quoted on such system or exchange, or the exchange with the greatest volume of trading in Common
Stock, on the date of grant or the date of determination, as applicable (or, if no closing sales price or closing bid was
reported on that date, as applicable, on the last trading date such closing sales price or closing bid was reported), as
reported in The Wall Street Journal or such other source as the Administrator deems reliable;

(ii) If the Common Stock is regularly quoted on an automated quotation system (including the OTC Bulletin Board) or by a
recognized securities dealer, its Fair Market Value shall be the closing sales price for such stock as quoted on such
system or by such securities dealer on the date of grant or the date of determination, as applicable, but if selling prices
are not reported, the Fair Market Value of a share of Common Stock shall be the mean between the high bid and low
asked prices for the Common Stock on the date of grant (or, if no such prices were reported on that date, on the last date
such prices were reported), as reported in The Wall Street Journal or such other source as the Administrator deems
reliable; or

(iii) In the absence of an established market for the Common Stock, the Fair Market Value thereof shall be determined in
good faith by the Administrator.
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(q) �Incentive Stock Option� means an Option intended to qualify as an incentive stock option within the meaning of
Section 422 of the Code, as designated in the applicable written Option Agreement.
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(r) �Listed Security� means any security of the Company that is listed or approved for listing on a national securities exchange or
designated or approved for designation as a national market system security on an interdealer quotation system by the National
Association of Securities Dealers, Inc.

(s) �Named Executive� means an Employee who is a �covered employee� under Section 162(m)(3) of the Code.

(t) �Nonstatutory Stock Option� means an Option not intended to qualify as an Incentive Stock Option, as designated in the
applicable written Option Agreement.

(u) �Officer� means a person who is an officer of the Company (or any Parent or Subsidiary) within the meaning of Section 16(a) of the
Exchange Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

(v) �Option� means a stock option granted pursuant to the Plan.

(w) �Option Agreement� means a written agreement between an Optionee and the Company reflecting the terms of an Option granted
under the Plan and includes any documents attached to such Option Agreement, including, but not limited to, a notice of stock
option grant and a form of exercise notice.

(x) �Optioned Stock� means the Common Stock subject to an Option or a Stock Purchase Right.

(y) �Optionee� means an Employee or Consultant who receives an Option.

(z) �Parent� means a �parent corporation,� whether now or hereafter existing, as defined in Section 424(e) of the Code, or any successor
provision.

(aa) �Participant� means any holder of one or more Options or Stock Awards, or the Shares issuable or issued upon exercise of such
Awards, under the Plan.

(bb) �Plan� means this 2000 Stock Plan.

(cc) �Qualifying Performance Criteria� means any one or more of the following performance criteria, either individually, alternatively
or in any combination, applied to either the Company as a whole or to a business unit, Parent, Subsidiary or business segment,
either individually, alternatively or in any combination, and measured either annually or cumulatively over a period of years, on
an absolute basis or relative to a pre-established target, to previous years� results or to a designated comparison group, and on a
pre-tax or after-tax basis, in each case as specified by the Committee in the Award: (i) cash flow (including operating cash flow or
free cash flow); (ii) earnings (including gross margin, earnings before interest and taxes, earnings before taxes, and net earnings);
(iii) earnings per share; (iv) growth in earnings or earnings per share; (v) stock price; (vi) return on equity or average stockholders�
equity; (vii) total stockholder return; (viii) return on capital; (ix) return on assets or net assets; (x) return on investment;
(xi) revenue; (xii) income or net income; (xiii) operating income or net operating income; (xiv) operating profit or net operating
profit; (xv) operating margin; (xvi) return on operating revenue; (xvii) market share; (xviii) contract awards or backlog;
(xix) overhead or other expense reduction; (xx) growth in stockholder value relative to the moving average of the S&P 500 Index
or a peer group index; (xxi) credit rating; (xxii) strategic plan development and implementation (including individual performance
objectives that relate to achievement of the Company�s or any business unit�s strategic plan); (xxiii) improvement in workforce
diversity; (xxiv) expenses; (xxv) economic value added; (xxvi) product quality; (xxvii) number of customers; (xxviii) objective
customer indicators; (xxix) customer satisfaction; (xxx) new product invention or innovation; (xxxi) profit after taxes;
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(xxxii) pre-tax profit; (xxxiii) working capital; (xxxiv) sales; (xxxv) advancement of the Company�s product pipeline;
(xxxvi) consummation of strategic transactions; (xxxvii) reduction in cash utilization; and (xxxviii) addition of technologies and
products. The Committee may appropriately adjust any evaluation of performance under a Qualifying Performance Criteria to
exclude any of the following events that occurs during a performance period: (A) asset write-downs; (B) litigation or claim
judgments or settlements; (C) the effect of changes in tax law, accounting principles or other such
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laws or provisions affecting reported results; (D) accruals for reorganization and restructuring programs; and (E) any gains
or losses classified as extraordinary or as discontinued operations in the Company�s financial statements.

(dd) �Reporting Person� means an Officer, Director, or greater than 10% stockholder of the Company within the meaning of Rule 16a-2
under the Exchange Act, who is required to file reports pursuant to Rule 16a-3 under the Exchange Act.

(ee) �Restatement Effective Date� means the date of the Company�s 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

(ff) �Restricted Stock� means shares of Common Stock acquired pursuant to a grant of a Stock Award under Sections 11, 12 or 13
below.

(gg) �Rule 16b-3� means Rule 16b-3 promulgated under the Exchange Act, as the same may be amended from time to time, or any
successor provision.

(hh) �Share� means a share of the Common Stock, as adjusted in accordance with Section 17 of the Plan.

(ii) �Stock Appreciation Right� means a right to receive cash and/or shares of Common Stock based on the appreciation in the Fair
Market Value of a specific number of shares of Common Stock granted under Section 13.

(jj) �Stock Award� means a Stock Grant, a Stock Unit, a Stock Appreciation Right or a Stock Purchase Right granted under Sections
11, 12 or 13.

(kk) �Stock Award Agreement� means a written agreement, the form(s) of which shall be approved from time to time by the
Administrator, between the Company and a holder of a Stock Award evidencing the terms and conditions of an individual Stock
Award grant. Each Stock Award Agreement shall be subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan.

(ll) �Stock Exchange� means any stock exchange or consolidated stock price reporting system on which prices for the Common Stock
are quoted at any given time.

(mm) �Stock Grant� means the award of a certain number of shares of Common Stock granted under Section 11 below.

(nn) �Stock Purchase Right� means the right to purchase Common Stock pursuant to Section 12 below.

(oo) �Stock Unit� means a bookkeeping entry representing an amount equivalent to the Fair Market Value of one Share, payable in cash,
property or Shares. Stock Units represent an unfunded and unsecured obligation of the Company, except as otherwise provided for
by the Administrator.

(pp) �Subsidiary� means a �subsidiary corporation,� whether now or hereafter existing, as defined in Section 424(f) of the Code, or any
successor provision.
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(qq) �Ten Percent Holder� means a person who owns stock representing more than ten percent (10%) of the voting power of all classes
of stock of the Company or any Parent or Subsidiary.

3. Stock Subject to the Plan. Subject to the provisions of Section 17 of the Plan, the maximum aggregate number of Shares that may be sold
or issued under the Plan is 33,796,500 Shares; provided, however, that the maximum aggregate number of Shares that may be issued
pursuant to Incentive Stock Option is 33,796,500 Shares. The Shares may be authorized, but unissued, or reacquired Common Stock.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, any Shares issued in connection with Awards granted on or after June 23, 2010, other than Options and
Stock Appreciation Rights, shall be counted against the limit set forth herein as two (2) Shares for every one (1) Share issued in connection
with such Award (and shall be counted as two (2) Shares for every one (1) Share returned or deemed not have been issued from the Plan
pursuant to this Section 3 in connection with Awards other than Options and Stock Appreciation Rights).

Any Shares covered by an Award (or portion of an Award) which is forfeited, canceled or expires (whether voluntarily or involuntarily) shall be
deemed not to have been issued for purposes of determining the

4
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maximum aggregate number of Shares which may be issued under the Plan. Shares that actually have been issued under the Plan pursuant to an
Award shall not be returned to the Plan and shall not become available for future issuance under the Plan, except that if unvested Shares are
forfeited, or repurchased by the Company at the lower of their original purchase price or their Fair Market Value at the time of repurchase, such
Shares shall become available for future grant under the Plan. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein: (i) Shares tendered or
withheld in payment of an Option exercise price shall not be returned to the Plan and shall not become available for future issuance under the
Plan; (ii) Shares withheld by the Company to satisfy any tax withholding obligation shall not be returned to the Plan and shall not become
available for future issuance under the Plan; and (iii) all Shares covered by the portion of a Stock Appreciation Right that is exercised (whether
or not Shares are actually issued to the Participant upon exercise of the Stock Appreciation Right) shall be considered issued pursuant to the
Plan.

4. Administration of the Plan.

(a) General. The Plan shall be administered by the Board or a Committee, or a combination thereof, as determined by the Board. The
Plan may be administered by different administrative bodies with respect to different classes of Optionees and, if permitted by the
Applicable Laws, the Board may authorize one or more officers (who may (but need not) be Officers) to grant Options, Stock
Awards and Cash Awards to Employees and Consultants.

(b) Administration With Respect to Reporting Persons. With respect to Options, Stock Awards and Cash Awards granted to
Reporting Persons and Named Executives, the Plan may (but need not) be administered so as to permit such Options, Stock
Awards and Cash Awards to qualify for the exemption set forth in Rule 16b-3 and to qualify as performance-based compensation
under Section 162(m) of the Code.

(c) Committee Composition. If a Committee has been appointed pursuant to this Section 4, such Committee shall continue to serve
in its designated capacity until otherwise directed by the Board. From time to time the Board may increase the size of any
Committee and appoint additional members thereof, remove members (with or without cause) and appoint new members in
substitution therefor, fill vacancies (however caused) and remove all members of a Committee and thereafter directly administer
the Plan, all to the extent permitted by the Applicable Laws and, in the case of a Committee administering the Plan pursuant to
Section 4(b) above, to the extent permitted or required by Rule 16b-3 and Section 162(m) of the Code.

(d) Powers of the Administrator. Subject to the provisions of the Plan and in the case of a Committee, the specific duties delegated
by the Board to such Committee, and subject to the approval of any relevant authorities, including the approval, if required, of any
Stock Exchange, the Administrator shall have the authority, in its discretion:

(i) to determine the Fair Market Value of the Common Stock, in accordance with Section 2(p) of the Plan;

(ii) to select the Consultants and Employees to whom Options, Stock Awards and Cash Awards or any combination thereof
may from time to time be granted hereunder;

(iii) to determine whether and to what extent Options, Stock Awards and Cash Awards or any combination thereof are
granted hereunder;

(iv) to determine the number of shares of Common Stock to be covered by each such Award granted hereunder;

(v) to approve forms of agreement for use under the Plan;
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(vi) to determine the terms and conditions, not inconsistent with the terms of the Plan, of any Award granted
hereunder. Such terms and conditions include, but are not limited to, the
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exercise and/or purchase price (if applicable), the time or times when an Award may be exercised (which may or may
not be based on performance criteria), the vesting schedule, any vesting and/or exercisability acceleration or waiver of
forfeiture restrictions, the acceptable forms of consideration, the term, and any restriction or limitation regarding any
Award or the Shares relating thereto, based in each case on such factors as the Administrator, in its sole discretion, shall
determine and may be established at the time an Award is granted or thereafter;

(vii) to determine the terms and restrictions applicable to Stock Awards and the Restricted Stock purchased by exercising
such Stock Awards; and

(viii) to construe and interpret the terms of the Plan and Awards granted pursuant to the Plan;

(ix) in order to fulfill the purposes of the Plan and without amending the Plan, to modify grants of Options, Stock Awards
and Cash Awards to participants who are foreign nationals or employed outside of the United States in order to
recognize differences in local law, tax policies or customs;

(x) to allow Participants to satisfy withholding tax amounts by electing to have the Company withhold from the Shares to
be issued upon exercise of a Nonstatutory Stock Option or vesting of a Stock Award that number of Shares having a
Fair Market Value equal to the amount required to be withheld. The Fair Market Value of the Shares to be withheld
shall be determined in such manner and on such date that the Administrator shall determine or, in the absence of
provision otherwise, on the date that the amount of tax to be withheld is to be determined. All elections by a Participant
to have Shares withheld for this purpose shall be made in such form and under such conditions as the Administrator
may provide;

(xi) to correct administrative errors;

(xii) to modify or amend each Award, including, but not limited to, the acceleration of vesting and/or exercisability,
provided, however, that any such amendment is subject to Section 20 of the Plan and except as set forth in that Section,
may not impair any outstanding Award unless agreed to in writing by the Participant;

(xiii) to authorize conversion or substitution under the Plan of any or all options, stock appreciation rights or stock awards
held by service providers of an entity acquired by the Company (the �Conversion Awards�). Any conversion or
substitution shall be effective as of the close of the merger, acquisition or other transaction. The Conversion Awards
may be Nonstatutory

Stock Options or Incentive Stock Options, as determined by the Administrator, with respect to options granted by the acquired entity; provided,
however, that with respect to the conversion of stock appreciation rights in the acquired entity, the Conversion Awards shall be Nonstatutory
Stock Options. Unless otherwise determined by the Administrator at the time of conversion or substitution, all Conversion Awards shall have the
same terms and conditions as Awards generally granted by the Company under the Plan;

(xiv) to authorize any person to execute on behalf of the Company any instrument required to effect the grant of an Award
previously granted by the Administrator;

(xv) to impose such restrictions, conditions or limitations as it determines appropriate as to the timing and manner of any
resales by a Participant or other subsequent transfers by the Participant of any Shares issued as a result of or under an
Award, including without limitation, (A) restrictions under an insider trading policy and (B) restrictions as to the use of
a specified brokerage firm for such resales or other transfers;
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(xvi) to provide, either at the time an Award is granted or by subsequent action, that an Award shall contain as a term thereof,
a right, either in tandem with the other rights under the Award or as an alternative thereto, of the Participant to receive,
without payment to the Company, a number of Shares, cash or a combination thereof, the amount of which is
determined by reference to the value of the Award; and
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(xvii) to make all other determinations deemed necessary or advisable for administering the Plan and any Award granted
hereunder.

(e) Effect of Administrator�s Decision. All decisions, determinations and interpretations of the Administrator shall be final and
binding on all holders of Options, Stock Awards or Cash Awards.

5. Eligibility.

(a) Recipients of Grants. Nonstatutory Stock Options, Stock Awards and Cash Awards may be granted to Employees and
Consultants. Incentive Stock Options may be granted only to Employees. An Employee or Consultant who has been granted an
Option, Stock Award or Cash Award may, if he or she is otherwise eligible, be granted additional Options, Stock Awards or Cash
Awards.

(b) Type of Option. Each Option shall be designated in the Option Agreement as either an Incentive Stock Option or a Nonstatutory
Stock Option. However, notwithstanding such designations, to the extent that the aggregate Fair Market Value of Shares with
respect to which Options designated as Incentive Stock Options are exercisable for the first time by any Optionee during any
calendar year (under all plans of the Company or any Parent or Subsidiary) exceeds $100,000, such excess Options shall be
treated as Nonstatutory Stock Options. For purposes of this Section 5(b), Incentive Stock Options shall be taken into account in
the order in which they were granted, and the Fair Market Value of the Shares subject to an Incentive Stock Option shall be
determined as of the date of the grant of such Option.

(c) Employment Relationship. The Plan shall not confer upon the holder of any Option or Stock Award any right with respect to
continuation of employment or consulting relationship with the Company, nor shall it interfere in any way with such holder�s right
or the Company�s right to terminate his or her employment or consulting relationship at any time, with or without cause.

6. Term of Plan. The Plan became effective upon its initial approval by the stockholders of the Company in March 2000 and was amended
and restated effective as of the Restatement Effective Date. It shall continue in effect for a term of ten (10) years from the Restatement
Effective Date unless sooner terminated under Section 20 of the Plan.

7. Term of Option. The term of each Option shall be the term stated in the Option Agreement; provided, however, that the term shall be no
more than ten years from the date of grant thereof or such shorter term as may be provided in the Option Agreement and provided further
that, in the case of an Incentive Stock Option granted to an Optionee who, at the time the Option is granted, owns stock representing more
than 10% of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Company or any Parent or Subsidiary, the term of the Option
shall be five years from the date of grant thereof or such shorter term as may be provided in the Option Agreement.

8. Limitation on Grants to Employees. Subject to adjustment as provided in Section 17 below, the maximum number of Shares which may
be subject to Options and Stock Awards granted to any one Employee under this Plan for any fiscal year of the Company shall be
1,500,000 Shares.

9. Option Exercise Price and Consideration.

(a) Exercise Price. The per share exercise price for the Shares to be issued pursuant to exercise of an Option shall be such price as is
determined by the Board and set forth in the applicable agreement, but shall be subject to the following:

(i) In the case of an Incentive Stock Option that is:
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(A) granted to an Employee who, at the time of the grant of such Incentive Stock Option, is a Ten Percent Holder,
the per Share exercise price shall be no less than 110% of the Fair Market Value per Share on the date of
grant.

7

Edgar Filing: GENERAL GEOPHYSICS CO - Form 6-K

Table of Contents 64



(B) granted to any other Employee, the per Share exercise price shall be no less than 100% of the Fair Market
Value per Share on the date of grant.

(ii) In the case of a Nonstatutory Stock Option, the per Share exercise price shall be no less than 100% of the Fair Market
Value per Share on the date of grant; or

(iii) Notwithstanding the foregoing, Options may be granted with a per Share exercise price other than as required above
pursuant to a merger or other corporate transaction.

(b) No Option Repricings, Exchanges or Buyouts. Other than in connection with a change in the Company�s capitalization, merger
or certain other transactions (as described in Section 17 of the Plan), the following actions will be subject to stockholder approval:
(i) the reduction of the exercise price of any Option granted under the Plan or (ii) the cancellation of an Option at a time when its
exercise price exceeds the Fair Market Value of the underlying Shares, in exchange for another Option, Stock Appreciation Right
or other Award or for a cash payment. Notwithstanding the foregoing, canceling an Option in exchange for another Option, Stock
Appreciation Right or other Award with an exercise price, purchase price or base appreciation amount that is equal to or greater
than the exercise price of the original Option shall not be subject to stockholder approval.

(c) Permissible Consideration. The consideration to be paid for the Shares to be issued upon exercise of an Option, including the
method of payment, shall be determined by the Administrator (and, in the case of an Incentive Stock Option, shall be determined
at the time of grant) and may consist entirely of (1) cash, (2) check, (3) promissory note (subject to the provisions of Section 153
of the Delaware General Corporation Law), (4) other Shares that (x) in the case of Shares acquired upon exercise of an Option,
have been owned by the Optionee for more than six months on the date of surrender or such other period as may be required to
avoid a charge to the Company�s earnings, and (y) have a Fair Market Value on the date of surrender equal to the aggregate
exercise price of the Shares as to which such Option shall be exercised, (5) authorization for the Company to retain from the total
number of Shares as to which the Option is exercised that number of Shares having a Fair Market Value on the date of exercise
equal to the exercise price for the total number of Shares as to which

the Option is exercised, (6) delivery of a properly executed exercise notice together with such other documentation as the Administrator and the
broker, if applicable, shall require to effect an exercise of the Option and delivery to the Company of the sale or loan proceeds required to pay
the exercise price and any applicable income or employment taxes, (7) any combination of the foregoing methods of payment, or (8) such other
consideration and method of payment for the issuance of Shares to the extent permitted under the Applicable Laws. In making its determination
as to the type of consideration to accept, the Administrator shall consider if acceptance of such consideration may be reasonably expected to
benefit the Company.

10. Exercise of Option.

(a) Procedure for Exercise; Rights as a Stockholder. Any Option granted hereunder shall be exercisable at such times and under
such conditions as determined by the Administrator, including performance criteria with respect to the Company and/or the
Optionee, and as shall be permissible under the terms of the Plan. The Administrator shall have the discretion to determine
whether and to what extent the vesting of Options shall be tolled during any unpaid leave of absence; provided, however, that in
the absence of such determination, vesting of Options shall be tolled during any leave that is not a leave required to be provided to
the Optionee under Applicable Law. In the event of military leave, vesting shall toll during any unpaid portion of such leave,
provided that, upon an Optionee�s returning from military leave (under conditions that would entitle him or her to protection upon
such return under the Uniform Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act), he or she shall be given vesting credit with
respect to Options to the same extent as would have applied had the Optionee continued to provide services to the Company
throughout the leave on the same terms as he or she was providing services immediately prior to such leave.
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An Option may not be exercised for a fraction of a Share.

An Option shall be deemed to be exercised when written (including electronic) notice of such exercise has been given to the Company in
accordance with the terms of the Option by the person entitled to exercise the Option and the Company has received full payment for the Shares
with respect to which the Option is exercised. Full payment may, as authorized by the Board, consist of any consideration and method of
payment allowable under Section 9(c) of the Plan. Until the issuance (as evidenced by the appropriate entry on the books of the Company or of a
duly authorized transfer agent of the Company) of the stock certificate evidencing such Shares, no right to vote or receive dividends or any other
rights as a stockholder shall exist with respect to the Optioned Stock, not withstanding the exercise of the Option. The Company shall issue (or
cause to be issued) such stock certificate promptly upon exercise of the Option. No adjustment will be made for a dividend or other right for
which the record date is prior to the date the stock certificate is issued, except as provided in Section 17 of the Plan.

Exercise of an Option in any manner shall result in a decrease in the number of Shares that thereafter may be available, both for purposes of the
Plan and for sale under the Option, by the number of Shares as to which the Option is exercised.

(b) Termination of Employment or Consulting Relationship. Subject to Section 10(c) below, in the event of termination of an
Optionee�s Continuous Status as an Employee or Consultant with the Company, such Optionee may, but only within three months
(or such other period of time not less than 30 days as is determined by the Administrator, with such determination in the case of an
Incentive Stock Option being made at the time of grant of the Option and not exceeding three months) after the date of such
termination (but in no event later than the expiration date of the term of such Option as set forth in the Option Agreement),
exercise his or her Option to the extent that the Optionee was entitled to exercise it at the date of such termination. To the extent
that the Optionee was not entitled to exercise the Option at the date of such termination, or if the Optionee does not exercise such
Option to the extent so entitled within the time specified herein, the Option shall terminate. No termination shall be deemed to
occur and this Section 10(b) shall not apply if (i) the Optionee is a Consultant who becomes an Employee, or (ii) the Optionee is
an Employee who becomes a Consultant.

(c) Disability of Optionee.

(i) Notwithstanding Section 10(b) above, in the event of termination of an Optionee�s Continuous Status as an Employee or
Consultant as a result of his or her total and permanent disability (within the meaning of Section 22(e)(3) of the Code),
such Optionee may, but only within twelve months from the date of such termination (but in no event later than the
expiration date of the term of such Option as set forth in the Option Agreement), exercise the Option to the extent
otherwise entitled to exercise it at the date of such termination. To the extent that the Optionee was not entitled to
exercise the Option at the date of termination, or if the Optionee does not exercise such Option to the extent so entitled
within the time specified herein, the Option shall terminate.

(ii) In the event of termination of an Optionee�s Continuous Status as an Employee or Consultant as a result of a disability
which does not fall within the meaning of total and permanent disability (as set forth in Section 22(e)(3) of the Code),
such Optionee may, but only within six months from the date of such termination (but in no event later than the
expiration date of the term of such Option as set forth in the Option Agreement), exercise the Option to the extent
otherwise entitled to exercise it at the date of such termination. However, to the extent that such Optionee fails to
exercise an Option which is an Incentive Stock Option (�ISO�) (within the meaning of Section 422 of the Code) within
three months of the date of such termination, the Option will not qualify for ISO treatment under the Code. To the
extent that
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the Optionee was not entitled to exercise the Option at the date of termination, or if the Optionee does not exercise such
Option to the extent so entitled within six months from the date of termination, the Option shall terminate.

(d) Death of Optionee. In the event of the death of an Optionee during the period of Continuous Status as an Employee or Consultant
since the date of grant of the Option, or within 30 days following termination of the Optionee�s Continuous Status as an Employee
or Consultant, the Option may be exercised, at any time within six months following the date of death (but in no event later than
the expiration date of the term of such Option as set forth in the Option Agreement), by such Optionee�s estate or by a person who
acquired the right to exercise the Option by bequest or inheritance, but only to the extent of the right to exercise that had accrued
at the date of death or, if earlier, the date of termination of the Optionee�s Continuous Status as an Employee or Consultant. To the
extent that the Optionee was not entitled to exercise the Option at the date of death or termination, as the case may be, or if the
Optionee does not exercise such Option to the extent so entitled within the time specified herein, the Option shall terminate.

(e) Extension of Exercise Period. The Administrator shall have full power and authority to extend the period of time for which an
Option is to remain exercisable following termination of an Optionee�s Continuous Status as an Employee or Consultant from the
periods set forth in Sections 10(b), 10(c) and 10(d) above or in the Option Agreement to such greater time as the Board shall deem
appropriate, provided that in no event shall such Option be exercisable later than the date of expiration of the term of such Option
as set forth in the Option Agreement.

(f) Rule 16b-3. Options granted to Reporting Persons shall comply with Rule 16b-3 and shall contain such additional conditions or
restrictions as may be required thereunder to qualify for the maximum exemption for Plan transactions.

11. Stock Grants and Stock Unit Awards. Each Stock Award Agreement reflecting the issuance of a Stock Grant or Stock Unit shall be in
such form and shall contain such terms and conditions as the Administrator shall deem appropriate. The terms and conditions of such
agreements may change from time to time, and the terms and conditions of separate agreements need not be identical, but each such
agreement shall include (through incorporation of provisions hereof by reference in the agreement or otherwise) the substance of each of
the following provisions:

(a) Consideration. A Stock Grant or Stock Unit may be awarded in consideration for such property or services as is permitted under
Applicable Law, including for past services actually rendered to the Company or a Subsidiary for its benefit.

(b) Vesting. Shares of Common Stock awarded under an agreement reflecting a Stock Grant and a Stock Unit award may, but need
not, be subject to a share repurchase option, forfeiture restriction or other conditions in favor of the Company in accordance with a
vesting or lapse schedule to be determined by the Administrator.

(c) Termination of Participant�s Continuous Service. In the event a Participant�s Continuous Service terminates, the Company may
reacquire any or all of the Shares held by the Participant which have not vested or which are otherwise subject to forfeiture or
other conditions as of the date of termination under the terms of the agreement.

(d) Transferability. Rights to acquire Shares under a Stock Grant or a Stock Unit agreement shall be transferable by the Participant
only by will or by the laws of descent and distribution.

12. Stock Purchase Rights.

(a) Rights to Purchase. Stock Purchase Rights may be issued either alone, in addition to, or in tandem with other awards granted
under the Plan and/or cash awards made outside of the Plan. After the Administrator determines that it will offer Stock Purchase
Rights under the Plan, it shall advise the
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offeree in writing of the terms, conditions and restrictions related to the offer, including the number of Shares that such person
shall be entitled to purchase, the price to be paid, and the time within which such person must accept such offer, which shall in no
event exceed 30 days from the date upon which the Administrator made the determination to grant the Stock Purchase Right. The
purchase price of Shares subject to Stock Purchase Rights shall be as determined by the Administrator. The offer to purchase
Shares subject to Stock Purchase Rights shall be accepted by execution of a Stock Award Agreement in the form determined by
the Administrator.

(b) Repurchase Option. Unless the Administrator determines otherwise, the Stock Award Agreement shall grant the Company a
repurchase option exercisable upon the voluntary or involuntary termination of the purchaser�s employment with the Company for
any reason (including death or disability). The purchase price for Shares repurchased pursuant to the Restricted Stock Award
Agreement shall be the original purchase price paid by the purchaser and may be paid by cancellation of any indebtedness of the
purchaser to the Company. The repurchase option shall lapse at such rate as the Administrator may determine.

(c) Other Provisions. The Restricted Stock Purchase Agreement shall contain such other terms, provisions and conditions not
inconsistent with the Plan as may be determined by the Administrator in its sole discretion. In addition, the provisions of
Restricted Stock Purchase Agreements need not be the same with respect to each purchaser.

(d) Rights as a Stockholder. Once the Stock Purchase Right is exercised, the purchaser shall have the rights equivalent to those of a
stockholder, and shall be a stockholder when his or her purchase is entered upon the records of the duly authorized transfer agent
of the Company. No adjustment will be made for a dividend or other right for which the record date is prior to the date the Stock
Purchase Right is exercised, except as provided in Section 17 of the Plan.

13. Stock Appreciation Rights.

(a) General. Stock Appreciation Rights may be granted either alone, in addition to, or in tandem with other Awards granted under the
Plan. The Administrator may grant Stock Appreciation Rights to eligible Participants subject to terms and conditions not
inconsistent with this Plan and determined by the Administrator. The specific terms and conditions applicable to the Participant
shall be provided for in the Stock Award Agreement. Stock Appreciation Rights shall be exercisable, in whole or in part, at such
times as the Administrator shall specify in the Stock Award Agreement.

(b) Exercise of Stock Appreciation Right. Upon the exercise of a Stock Appreciation Right, in whole or in part, the Participant shall
be entitled to a payment in an amount equal to the excess of the Fair Market Value on the date of exercise of a fixed number of
Shares covered by the exercised portion of the Stock Appreciation Right, over the base appreciation amount of the Shares
pursuant to the Stock Appreciation Right. The amount due to the Participant upon the exercise of a Stock Appreciation Right shall
be paid in such form of consideration as determined by the Administrator and may be in cash, Shares or a combination thereof,
over the period or periods, in each case as specified in the Stock Award Agreement. A Stock Award Agreement may place limits
on the amount that may be paid over any specified period or periods upon the exercise of a Stock Appreciation Right, on an
aggregate basis or as to any Participant. A Stock Appreciation Right shall be considered exercised when the Company receives
written notice of exercise in accordance with the terms of the Stock Award Agreement from the person entitled to exercise the
Stock Appreciation Right.

(c) Nonassignability of Stock Appreciation Rights. Except as determined by the Board, no Stock Appreciation Right shall be
assignable or otherwise transferable by the Participant except by will or by the laws of descent and distribution.
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(d) Base Appreciation Amount and Term of Stock Appreciation Right. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the price
used to determine the amount payable to a Participant (in accordance with Section 13(b) above) upon exercise of any Stock
Appreciation Right granted under the Plan (referred to in the Plan as the �base appreciation amount�) shall be no less than 100% of
the Fair Market Value per Share on the date of grant; provided, however, that Stock Appreciation Rights may be granted with a
base appreciation amount other than as required above pursuant to a merger or other corporate transaction. The term of each Stock
Appreciation Right shall be the term stated in the Stock Award Agreement; provided, however, that the term shall be no more than
ten years from the date of grant thereof or such shorter term as may be provided in the Stock Award Agreement.

(e) No Repricings, Exchanges or Buyouts. Other than in connection with a change in the Company�s capitalization, merger or
certain other transactions (as described in Section 17 of the Plan), the following actions will be subject to stockholder approval:
(i) the reduction of the base appreciation amount of any Stock Appreciation Right granted under the Plan or (ii) the cancellation of
a Stock Appreciation Right at a time when its base appreciation amount exceeds the Fair Market Value of the underlying Shares,
in exchange for another Option, Stock Appreciation Right or other Award or for a cash payment. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
canceling a Stock Appreciation Right in exchange for another Option, Stock Appreciation Right or other Award with an exercise
price, purchase price or base appreciation amount that is equal to or greater than the base appreciation amount of the original
Stock Appreciation Right shall not be subject to stockholder approval.

14. Cash Awards. Each Cash Award will confer upon the Participant the opportunity to earn a future payment tied to the level of achievement
with respect to one or more performance criteria established for a performance period of not less than one (1) year.

(a) Cash Award. Each Cash Award shall contain provisions regarding (i) the target and maximum amount payable to the Participant
as a Cash Award, (ii) the performance criteria and level of achievement versus these criteria which shall determine the amount of
such payment, (iii) the period

as to which performance shall be measured for establishing the amount of any payment, (iv) the timing of any payment earned by virtue of
performance, (v) restrictions on the alienation or transfer of the Cash Award prior to actual payment, (vi) forfeiture provisions, and (vii) such
further terms and conditions, in each case not inconsistent with the Plan, as may be determined from time to time by the Administrator. The
maximum amount payable as a Cash Award may be a multiple of the target amount payable, but the maximum amount payable pursuant to that
portion of a Cash Award granted under this Plan for any fiscal year to any Participant that is intended to satisfy the requirements for �performance
based compensation� under Section 162(m) of the Code shall not exceed U.S. $1,000,000.

(b) Performance Criteria. The Administrator shall establish the performance criteria and level of achievement versus these criteria
which shall determine the target and the minimum and maximum amount payable under a Cash Award, which criteria may be
based on financial performance and/or personal performance evaluations. The Administrator may specify the percentage of the
target Cash Award that is intended to satisfy the requirements for �performance-based compensation� under Section 162(m) of the
Code. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the performance criteria for any portion of a Cash Award that is intended
to satisfy the requirements for �performance-based compensation� under Section 162(m) of the Code shall be a measure established
by the Administrator based on one or more Qualifying Performance Criteria selected by the Administrator and specified in writing
not later than 90 days after the commencement of the period of service to which the performance goals relates, provided that the
outcome is substantially uncertain at that time (or in such other manner that complies with Section 162(m)).

(c) Timing and Form of Payment. The Administrator shall determine the timing of payment of any Cash Award. The Administrator
may provide for or, subject to such terms and conditions as the Administrator may specify, may permit a Participant to elect for
the payment of any Cash Award to be deferred to a specified date or event. The Administrator may specify the form of payment of
Cash
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Awards, which may be cash or other property, or may provide for a Participant to have the option for his or her Cash Award, or
such portion thereof as the Administrator may specify, to be paid in whole or in part in cash or other property.

(d) Termination of Employment. The Administrator shall have the discretion to determine the effect a Termination of
Employment due to (i) disability, (ii) death or (iii) otherwise shall have on any Cash Award.

15. Section 162(m) Compliance. Any Stock Award (other than an Option or any other Stock Award having a purchase price equal
to 100% of the Fair Market Value on the date such award is made) or Cash Award that is intended as �qualified
performance-based compensation� within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code must not be granted before achievement of
one or more Qualifying Performance Criteria or may be granted before such achievement, provided that the Award does not vest
or become exercisable before achievement of the Qualifying Performance Criteria. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary
herein, the Committee shall have the discretion to determine the time and manner of compliance with Section 162(m) of the
Code as required under applicable regulations and to conform the procedures related to the Award to the requirements of
Section 162(m).

16. Taxes.

(a) As a condition of the grant, exercise or vesting of an Option, Stock Award or Cash Award granted under the Plan or issuance of
Shares under the Plan, the Participant (or in the case of the Participant�s death, the person exercising the Option, Stock Award or
Cash Award) shall make such arrangements as the Administrator may require for the satisfaction of any applicable federal, state,
local or foreign withholding tax obligations that may arise in connection with the exercise of Option, Stock Award or Cash Award
and the issuance of Shares. The Company shall not be required to issue any Shares or pay any cash under the Plan until such
obligations are satisfied.

(b) In the case of an Employee and in the absence of any other arrangement, the Employee shall be deemed to have directed the
Company to withhold or collect from his or her compensation an amount sufficient to satisfy such tax obligations from the next
payroll payment otherwise payable after the date of an exercise of the Option or Stock Award.

(c) In the case of Participant other than an Employee (or in the case of an Employee where the next payroll payment is not sufficient
to satisfy such tax obligations, with respect to any remaining tax obligations), in the absence of any other arrangement and to the
extent permitted under the Applicable Laws, the Participant shall be deemed to have elected to have the Company withhold from
the Shares to be issued upon exercise of the Option or Stock Award that number of Shares having a Fair Market Value determined
as of the applicable Tax Date (as defined below) equal to the minimum statutory amounts required to be withheld. For purposes of
this Section 16, the Fair Market Value of the Shares to be withheld shall be determined on the date that the amount of tax to be
withheld is to be determined under the Applicable Laws (the �Tax Date�).

(d) If permitted by the Administrator, in its discretion, a Participant may satisfy his or her tax withholding obligations upon exercise
of an Option or Stock Award by surrendering to the Company Shares that (i) in the case of Shares previously acquired from the
Company, have been owned by the Participant for more than six (6) months on the date of surrender, and (ii) have a Fair Market
Value determined as of the applicable Tax Date equal to the minimum statutory amounts required to be withheld.

(e) Any election or deemed election by a Participant to have Shares withheld to satisfy tax withholding obligations under
Section 16(c) or (d) above shall be irrevocable as to the particular Shares as to which the election is made and shall be subject to
the consent or disapproval of the Administrator. Any election by a Participant under Section 16(d) above must be made on or prior
to the applicable Tax Date.
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(f) In the event an election to have Shares withheld is made by a Participant and the Tax Date is deferred under Section 83 of the
Code because no election is filed under Section 83(b) of the Code, the Participant shall receive the full number of Shares with
respect to which the Option is exercised but such Participant shall be unconditionally obligated to tender back to the Company the
proper number of Shares on the applicable Tax Date.

17. Adjustments Upon Changes in Capitalization, Merger or Certain Other Transactions.

(a) Changes in Capitalization. Subject to any required action by the stockholders of the Company, the number of shares of Common
Stock covered by each outstanding Option or Stock Award, and the number of shares of Common Stock that have been authorized
for issuance under the Plan but as to which no Options or Stock Awards have yet been granted or that have been returned to the
Plan upon cancellation or expiration of an Option or Stock Award, and the number of shares set forth in Sections 3(i) and 8 above,
as well as the price per share of Common Stock covered by each such outstanding Option or Stock Award, shall be
proportionately adjusted for any increase or decrease in the number of issued shares of Common Stock resulting from a stock
split, reverse stock split, stock dividend, combination, recapitalization or reclassification of the Common Stock, or any other
increase or decrease in the number of issued shares of Common Stock effected without receipt of consideration by the Company;
provided, however, that conversion of any convertible securities of the Company shall not be deemed to have been �effected
without receipt of consideration.� In the event of any distribution of cash or other assets to stockholders other than a normal cash
dividend, the Board shall also make such adjustments as provided in this Section 17(a) or substitute, exchange or grant Awards to
effect such adjustments (collectively �adjustments�). Any such adjustments to outstanding Awards will be effected in a manner that
precludes the enlargement of rights and benefits under such Awards. Such adjustment shall be made by the Board, whose
determination in that respect shall be final, binding and conclusive. Except as expressly provided herein, no issuance by the
Company of shares of stock of any class, or securities convertible into shares of stock of any class, shall affect, and no adjustment
by reason thereof shall be made with respect to, the number or price of shares of Common Stock subject to an Option or Stock
Award.

(b) Dissolution or Liquidation. In the event of the proposed dissolution or liquidation of the Company, the Board shall notify the
Optionee at least 15 days prior to such proposed action. To the extent it has not been previously exercised, the Option or Stock
Award will terminate immediately prior to the consummation of such proposed action.

(c) Merger or Sale of Assets. In the event of a proposed sale of all or substantially all of the Company�s assets or a merger of the
Company with or into another corporation, each outstanding Award shall be assumed or an equivalent option or right shall be
substituted by such successor corporation or a parent or subsidiary of such successor corporation, unless the successor corporation
does not agree to assume the Award or to substitute an equivalent award, in which case such Award shall accelerate immediately
prior to the consummation of the merger or sale of assets. For purposes of this Section 17(c), an Option or Stock Award shall be
considered assumed, without limitation, if, at the time of issuance of the stock or other consideration upon such merger or sale of
assets, each holder of an Option or Stock Award would be entitled to receive upon exercise of the Option or Stock Award the
same number and kind of shares of stock or the same amount of property, cash or securities as such holder would have been
entitled to receive upon the occurrence of such transaction if the holder had been, immediately prior to such transaction, the holder
of the number of Shares of Common Stock covered by the Option or the Stock Award at such time (after giving effect to any
adjustments in the number of Shares covered by the Option or Stock Award as provided for in this Section 17); provided,
however, that if such consideration received in the merger or sale of assets is not solely common stock of the successor
corporation or its Parent, the Administrator may, with the consent of the successor corporation, provide for the consideration to be
received upon the exercise of an Option or Stock Award (or, as applicable, vesting of a Stock Award), for each Share subject to
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such Award, to be solely common stock of the successor corporation or its Parent equal in fair market value to the per Share
consideration received by holders of Common Stock in the merger or sale of assets.

(d) Certain Distributions. In the event of any distribution to the Company�s stockholders of securities of any other entity or
other assets (other than dividends payable in cash or stock of the Company) without receipt of consideration by the
Company, the Administrator may, in its discretion, appropriately adjust the price per share of Common Stock covered
by each outstanding Option or Stock Award to reflect the effect of such distribution.

18. Non-Transferability of Awards.

(a) General. Except as set forth in this Section 18, Awards may not be sold, pledged, assigned, hypothecated, transferred or disposed
of in any(b) manner other than by will or by the laws of descent or distribution. The designation of a beneficiary by a Participant
will not constitute a transfer. An Option or Stock Award may be exercised, during the lifetime of the holder of an Option or Stock
Award, only by such holder or a transferee permitted by this Section 18.

(b) Limited Transferability Rights. The Administrator may in its discretion grant transferable Nonstatutory Stock Options pursuant
to Option Agreements specifying the manner in which such Nonstatutory Stock Options are transferable.

19. Time of Granting Awards. The date of grant of an Award shall, for all purposes, be the date on which the Administrator makes the
determination granting such Award, or such other date as is determined by the Board; provided, however, that in the case of any Incentive
Stock Option, the grant date shall be the later of the date on which the Administrator makes the determination granting such Incentive
Stock Option or the date of commencement of the Optionee�s employment relationship with the Company. Notice of the determination
shall be given to each Employee or Consultant to whom an Award is so granted within a reasonable time after the date of such grant.

20. Amendment and Termination of the Plan.

(a) Authority to Amend or Terminate. The Board may at any time amend, alter, suspend or discontinue the Plan, but no
amendment, alteration, suspension or discontinuation shall be made that would impair the rights of any Optionee or holder of
Stock Awards or Cash Awards under any grant theretofore made, without his or her consent. In addition, to the extent necessary
and desirable to comply with the Applicable Laws, the Company shall obtain stockholder approval of any Plan amendment in
such a manner and to such a degree as required. In addition, unless approved by the stockholders of the Company, no amendment
shall be made that would result in a repricing of Options or Stock Appreciation Rights by (x) reducing the exercise price or base
appreciation amount of outstanding Options and Stock Appreciation Rights or (y) canceling an outstanding Option or Stock
Appreciation Right held by a Participant and re-granting to the Participant a new Option with a lower exercise price, a Stock
Appreciation Right with a lower base appreciation amount, or another Award, in either case other than in connection with a
change in the Company�s capitalization, merger or certain other transactions pursuant to Section 17 of the Plan.

(b) Effect of Amendment or Termination. No amendment or termination of the Plan shall adversely affect Options, Stock Awards
or Cash Awards already granted, unless mutually agreed otherwise between the Optionee or holder of the Stock Awards or Cash
Awards and the Board, which agreement must be in writing and signed by the Optionee or holder of the Stock Awards or Cash
Awards and the Company.

21. Conditions Upon Issuance of Shares. Shares shall not be issued pursuant to the exercise of an Option or Stock Award unless the exercise
of such Option or Stock Award and the issuance and delivery of such
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Shares pursuant thereto shall comply with all relevant provisions of law, including, without limitation, the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, the Exchange Act, the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, and the requirements of any Stock Exchange.
Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan or any agreement entered into by the Company pursuant to the Plan, the Company shall
not be obligated, and shall have no liability for failure, to issue or deliver any Shares under the Plan unless such issuance or delivery would
comply with the Applicable Laws, with such compliance determined by the Company in consultation with its legal counsel.

As a condition to the exercise of an Option or Stock Award, the Company may require the person exercising such Award to represent and
warrant at the time of any such exercise that the Shares are being purchased only for investment and without any present intention to sell or
distribute such Shares if, in the opinion of counsel for the Company, such a representation is required by law.

22. Reservation of Shares. The Company, during the term of this Plan, will at all times reserve and keep available such number of Shares as
shall be sufficient to satisfy the requirements of the Plan. The inability of the Company to obtain authority from any regulatory body
having jurisdiction, which authority is deemed by the Company�s counsel to be necessary to the lawful issuance and sale of any Shares
hereunder, shall relieve the Company of any liability in respect of the failure to issue or sell such Shares as to which such requisite
authority shall not have been obtained.

23. Agreements. Options, Stock Awards and Cash Awards shall be evidenced by written Option Agreements, and Stock Award Agreements
and Cash Award Agreements respectively, in such form(s) as the Administrator shall approve from time to time.

24. Stockholder Approval. If required by Applicable Laws, continuance of the Plan shall be subject to approval by the stockholders of the
Company within twelve months before or after the date the Plan, as amended and restated effective June 16, 2014, is adopted. Such
stockholder approval shall be obtained in the degree and manner required under the Applicable Laws.

25. Unfunded Obligation. Participants shall have the status of general unsecured creditors of the Company. Any amounts payable to
Participants pursuant to the Plan shall be unfunded and unsecured obligations for all purposes, including, without limitation, Title I of the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended. Neither the Company nor any Parent or Subsidiary shall be required to
segregate any monies from its general funds, or to create any trusts, or establish any special accounts with respect to such obligations. The
Company shall retain at all times beneficial ownership of any investments, including trust investments, which the Company may make to
fulfill its payment obligations hereunder. Any investments or the creation or maintenance of any trust or any Participant account shall not
create or constitute a trust or fiduciary relationship between the Administrator, the Company or any Parent or Subsidiary and a Participant,
or otherwise create any vested or beneficial interest in any Participant or the Participant�s creditors in any assets of the Company or a Parent
or Subsidiary. The Participants shall have no claim against the Company or any Parent or Subsidiary for any changes in the value of any
assets that may be invested or reinvested by the Company with respect to the Plan.
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DURECT
IMPORTANT ANNUAL MEETING INFORMATION 000004
ENDORSEMENT LINE SACKPACK
MR A SAMPLE
DESIGNATION (IF ANY)
ADD 1 ADD 2 ADD 3
ADD 4 ADD 5 ADD 6
C123456789
000000000.000000 ext 000000000.000000 ext
000000000.000000 ext 000000000.000000 ext
000000000.000000 ext 000000000.000000 ext
Electronic Voting Instructions
Available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week!
Instead of mailing your proxy, you may choose one of the voting methods outlined below to vote your proxy.
VALIDATION DETAILS ARE LOCATED BELOW IN THE TITLE BAR.
Proxies submitted by the Internet or telephone must be received by 1:00 a.m., Central Time, on June 16, 2014.
Vote by Internet
Go to www.investorvote.com/drrx
Or scan the QR code with your smartphone
Follow the steps outlined on the secure website
Vote by telephone
Call toll free 1-800-652-VOTE (8683) within the USA, US territories & Canada on a touch tone telephone
Follow the instructions provided by the recorded message
Using a black ink pen, mark your votes with an X as shown in this example. Please do not write outside the designated
areas. X
Annual Meeting Proxy Card 1234 5678 9012 345
IF YOU HAVE NOT VOTED VIA THE INTERNET OR TELEPHONE, FOLD ALONG THE PERFORATION,
DETACH AND RETURN THE BOTTOM PORTION IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE.
A Proposals � The Board recommends a vote FOR all nominees and FOR Proposals 2, 3 and 4.
1. Election of Directors:
For Withhold For Withhold For Withhold +
01 - David R. Hoffmann
02 - Jon S. Saxe
03 - Jay Shepard
For Against Abstain For Against Abstain
2. An amendment to the 2000 Stock Plan to increase the number of shares of the Company�s Common Stock available
for issuance by 4,000,000 shares and to re-approve its material terms.
3. Say on Pay - An advisory vote on the approval of executive compensation.
4. The ratification of our appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for
the current fiscal year.
B Non-Voting Items
Change of Address � Please print your new address below.
Comments � Please print your comments below.
Meeting Attendance
Mark the box to the right if you plan to attend the Annual Meeting.
C Authorized Signatures � This section must be completed for your vote to be counted. � Date and Sign Below
Please sign exactly as name(s) appears hereon. Joint owners should each sign. When signing as attorney, executor,
administrator, trustee, guardian, or custodian, please give full title as such. If a corporation or partnership, please sign
in full corporate or partnership name by authorized officer.
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Date (mm/dd/yyyy) � Please print date below.
Signature 1 � Please keep signature within the box.
Signature 2 � Please keep signature within the box.
C 1234567890 JNT
MR A SAMPLE (THIS AREA IS SET UP TO ACCOMMODATE
140 CHARACTERS) MR A SAMPLE AND MR A SAMPLE AND
MR A SAMPLE AND MR A SAMPLE AND MR A SAMPLE AND
MR A SAMPLE AND MR A SAMPLE AND MR A SAMPLE AND
1UPX 1965251
+ 01TWCB
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IF YOU HAVE NOT VOTED VIA THE INTERNET OR TELEPHONE, FOLD ALONG THE PERFORATION,
DETACH AND RETURN THE BOTTOM PORTION IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE.
DURECT
Proxy � DURECT Corporation
Notice of 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders
Proxy Solicited by Board of Directors for Annual Meeting � June 16, 2014
James E. Brown and Felix Theeuwes, or any of them, each with the power of substitution, are hereby authorized to
represent and vote the shares of the undersigned, with all the powers which the undersigned would possess if
personally present, at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of DURECT Corporation to be held on Monday, June 16,
2014 or at any postponement or adjournment thereof.
Shares represented by this proxy will be voted by the stockholder. If no such directions are indicated, the Proxies will
have authority to vote FOR all nominees and FOR Proposals 2, 3 and 4.
In their discretion, the Proxies are authorized to vote upon such other business as may properly come before the
meeting.
(Items to be voted appear on reverse side.)
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